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Comcast Cable 
508 D South Van Dorn Street 
Alexandria, VA 22304 
Office: 703.567.4600 
Far: 703.567.4444 
www,corncast.com 

Ms. Rose Williams Boyd 
Director 
Office of Citizen Assistance 
City of Alexandria 
301 King Street Room 1900 
Alexandria, Virginia 223 14 

Dear Ms. Boyd, 

August 30,2005 -- 
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Comcast is pleased to submit our 2005 Annual Report to the City of Alexandria, in 
accordance with Chapter 3 of Title 9 of the Alexandria City Code. Included are copies or 
summaries of the Year's Activities within Local Origination and Community 
Programming, a Summary of Customer Complaints, Financial Reports, Statements of 
Major Equipment and Capital Expenditures, Construction Plans, a list of Comcast 
Officers and Board of Directors, the Alexandria Employee Report, Television Channel 
Changes, Customer Opinion Survey, the Plant Report, and Customer Service Telephone 
Statistics for the period of August 1,2004 through July 3 1,2005. 

This has been another busy year for the company, as we launched new channels and 
services to the residents of Alexandria. We added Discovery HD, as well as popular 
digital channels providing religious and ethnic programming. We launched the DVR 
service, which allows you to pause and rewind live events, as well as record 
programming. We also made substantial content additions to Video on Demand, adding 
more than 4,000 hours of programming, much of which is fiee of charge to the Digital 
customer. We have begun offering local content on VOD as an added service to the 
customer. We continue to work with the City on the implementation of an upgraded 
Institutional Network. During this period we interconnected the Alexandria I-Net with the 
Arlington I-Net bringing added advantages to the City staff. 

Comcast plans to continue its investment in the City bringing the latest programming and 
cutting edge technology to the community. Testing for Comcast Digital Voice (VOIP) 
began in first quarter 2005. CDV is l l l y  compliant with Federal and State regulations, 
including E911 services. The technical staff is working behind the scenes on Digital 
Simulcasting, which will have a positive impact on picture quality and clarity of the 
video services. We hope to launch these new services to the customers in late 2005. 



Community highlights from the past year are: 

+ Corporate sponsor of the Alexandria Waterfi-ont Festival, benefiting the American 
Red Cross. 

+ Interviewed hundreds of non-profits and aired their segments on Headline News to 
promote community activities and events. 

+ Major sponsor of the Philanthropy Summit, a partnership between the Alexandria 
Volunteer Bureau and the Alexandria Chamber of Commerce. Comcast was the 
recipient of the 2005 Business Philanthropy Award. 

+ Corporate sponsor of the Alexandria Chamber of Commerce, supporting Chamber 
events including Leadership Alexandria. 

+ Sponsored the Alexandria Scholarship Fund Telethon, which raised over $100,000 for 
T.C. Williams Graduates. 

+ Parhered with the City of Alexandria for the second annual Comcast Outdoor Film 
Festival at Ben Brennman Park. 

Comcast and its employees pride themselves with being involved with the Community, 
and being in the forefront within the Company to deploy new services and technologies 
to our customers. We look forward to continuing this partnership in 2006. 

Yours sincerely, 

Marie Schuler 
Director of Government and Community Affgirs 



@omcastz. 
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YEAR'S ACTIVITY SUMMARY 
Local Origination and Community Programming 

Service to the Community 

Supported Kones for Kids sponsored by the Department of Human Services for their 
Foster Care program. 
Supported the "Walk for the Future with Project discovery 
Supported the Alexandria Technology Awards 
Supported the Alexandria Volunteer Bureau An Evening in the Heart of Alexandria Gala 
Provided Cable in the Classroom magazines in conjunction with the CIC program in 
Alexandria Public Schools 
Supported the Alexandria Chamber of Commerce with their Annual Golf Tournament 
Supported the Alexandria City Public Schools Family Involvement Rally 
Awarded a Comcast scholarship to a T.C. Williams graduate pursuing film studies at the 
Scholarship Fund of Alexandria Awards Ceremony 
Both filmed and participated in the USAlAlexandria Birthday Celebration at Founders 
Park 
Filmed and participated in the American Indian Festival, the A k a n  American Festival, 
the Italian Festival, the Irish Festival and the Chirlagua Festival. 
Promoted summer concerts throughout the area, Lunch Bunch Concerts, Ben Brenman 
Park Concert, Ft Ward Park Concerts, Waterfront Park Concerts, Montgomery Park 
Concerts, Henderson Park Concerts, and the King Street Gardens Concert. 
Sponsored the Philanthropy Summit Awards; recipient of the 2005 Philanthropy Award 
Donated to the T.C. Williams Drug and Alcohol Free Graduation Party 
Participated in the United Way campaign 
Supported the Alexandria Chamber of Commerce "Total Resource" Campaign 
Sponsor of Leadership Alexandria 
Participated with the Region in Comcast Cares Day at W. Potomac High School in Prince 
William County. We landscaped the fiont entrance, back entrance, sides, and football 
field. 
Conducted a tour of Wheeler Avenue facility for the Federal Communications 
Commission and the United States Telecommunications Training Institute, whose class is 
made up of members of the military fiom around the world. 
Corporate sponsor of the Alexandria Waterftont Festival 
Live coverage of the Alexandria Election Returns 
Supported the Breast Cancer Walk, taped and broadcast the event 
Partnered with the City of Alexandria for the Comcast Outdoor Film Festival 
Taped and broadcast the T.C. Williams Homecoming Football Game on our local 
community Channel 



Taped and broadcast Agenda Alexandria monthly 
Taped and broadcast the Alexandria Chamber Business Leader of the Year Award 
Taped and broadcast the Grace Episcopal Concert 
Supported the Alexandria Chamber of Commerce Chairman's Gala 
Taped and broadcast the Martin Luther King Birthday Ceremony 
Taped and broadcast the St Patrick's Day Parade 
Taped and broadcast the George Washington Day Parade 
Supported, taped and broadcast the State of the City Address 
Taped and broadcast the Salute to Women Awards 
Taped and broadcast the Valor Awards; Chaired the Valor Committee 
Taped and broadcast the Law Day Debate 
Taped and broadcast the Episcopal Graduation 
Taped and broadcast the Bishop Ireton Graduation 
Taped and broadcast the T.C. Williams Graduation 
Taped and broadcast the Scholarship Awards Ceremony 
Taped and broadcast the St. Stephens /St. Agnes Graduation 
Taped and Broadcast the Scottish Christmas Walk 
Taped and Broadcast the Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony 
Taped and Broadcast the Excellence in Education Awards 
Taped and Broadcast the Kathy Harty Gray Dance Theatre 
Taped and Broadcast the Alexandria Boxing Club 2k4 
Taped and Broadcast the Ethiopian Evangelical Church program 
Taped and Broadcast the T.C. Williams vs. Hayfield Boys Basketball Game 
Taped and Broadcast the T.C. Williams vs. Hayfield Girls Basketball Game 
Taped and Broadcast the St. Stephen 1 St Agnes vs. DeMatha Basketball Game 
Taped and Broadcast the Grace Episcopal Spring Program 
Taped and Broadcast the CTE Awards Program 
Supported the Alexandria Torpedo Factory for the "Taste of Alexandria" 
Supported the Alexandria Department of Human Services with their Bicycle round-up 
Program 
Supported taped and Broadcast the NAACP Awards Banquet 
Supported the Northern Virginia Urban League Gala 
Participated in the City of Alexandria Softball Program 
Sponsored the Alexandria Scholarship Fund Telethon through in kind work planning and 
broadcasting live and on replay the telethon event. This year's telethon raised over 
$100,000. 
Sponsored the Scholarship Fund Committee Wrap-up Party 



Produced Comcast Local Edition interviews, appearing on Headline News for the 
following organizations: 

City of Alexandria Recreation, Parks & Cultural - 12 segments 
Art on the Avenue 1 Art Safari 
Alexandria Chapter of the American Red Cross 
Potomac Conservancy 
Inova Blood 
Alexandria Convention & Visitors Center - 6 segments 
Office on Women - Domestic Violence 
Office on Women - Walk to Fight Breast Cancer 
Office on Women - Sexual Assault Awareness Month 
Office on Women - Salute to Women Awards 
The Scholarship Fund of Alexandria Telethon 
Congressman James Moran 
SOC Enterprises - promotes independence for people with disabilities 
Alzheimer's Family Day Center 
Northern Virginia Aids Ministry 
Alexandria Chamber of Commerce 
Irish Festival 
St. Patrick's Day Parade 
Alexandria Commission for the Arts 
Alexandria Outdoor Film Festival 
The Campagna Center 
Alexandria Waterfront Festival 
The Twig - Tour of Homes 
Alexandria Symphony Orchestra - 14 segments 
First Night Alexandria 
Samaritan Ministry of Greater Washington 
Y-Me, Beast Cancer - National Capital Area 
Abigail Alliance Gala 
Pentagon Memorial Fund 
Agenda Alexandria - 2 segments 
Arlington Diocese Office of Refugee Settlement 
NCESGR 
Beth El Hebrew Congregation - Kehet Casino Night 
The Art League 
SCAN 
CrisisLink 
Azalea Charities 
Aach Homeless Association 
Avon Walk to Fight Breast Cancer 
Alexandria Technology Achievement Awards 
Lupus Foundation of Greater Washington 
Alexandria United Way 



Alexandria Symphony Ball 
The Carlyle House 
Girls Scouts 
Northern Virginia Urban League 
Angel Flight MidAtlantic 
Alexandria Animal Welfare League 
The Torpedo Factory 
Opera Theater of Northern Virginia 
MS Society 
Senior Services 
Alexandria Detox Center 
Alexandria - Gyumri, Armenia Sister Cities Committee 
Cyber Seniors / Cyber Teens 
Alexandria Volunteer Bureau 
Northern Virginia Urban League 



2005 ANNUAL REPORT 

SUMMARY OF CUSTOMER 
COMPLAINTS 
AUGUST 30,2005 



Summary of Complaints 
August 1,2004 - July 31,2005 
City of Alexandria, Virginia 

1. Com~hint: Customer complained that her bill is not correct. Stated that they 
were given "mesty" regarding a past due balance. 
Resolution: The customer was contacted and assured that the balance was 
cleared. 

2. Com~hint: Customer complained that his bill was incorrect. The customer 
received a mass mailing stating that Comcast would remove the "past due" debt 
during the amnesty program but his first bill arrived and the past due debt was 
included. 
Resolution: Spoke with customer and let him know that the ''amnesty" campaign 
kicks in once the customer is installed and the credit adjustments will appear on 
his second statement. Customer satisfied with explanation and resolution. 

3. Com~laint: Customer called and stated that the outside wiring was not 
completed and complained about problems with Channel 9. 
Resolution: The special request to have the cable buried took a few days due to 
locates being called in. The customer wanted a cable drop reconnected in his 
basement but because there was no television in place, we had to terminate the 
drop to the tap because of signal leakage. The customer was told that if he 
purchased a television, we would reconnect that outlet at no extra charge. Sub 
satisfied. 

4. Cormhint: Customer complained that his picture was wobbling on the lower 
channels and that he had multiple service calls to no avail. 
Resolution: A maintenance technician was dispatched and changed out a bad 
tap. Customer called back and thanked us for resolving his issues. Sub satisfied. 

5. Com~laint: Customer tried to resolve a billing complaint regarding a promotion 
for Basic cable and Internet and was told that the installation would be flee. 
Resolution: Contacted the subscriber and apologized about the installation fee 
which appeared on his h t  statement. Adjusted his account for the installation 
charge and sub is satisfied. 

6. Com~laint: Customer complained about the rate increased and dso wanted to 
see religious programming. 
Resolution: Spoke to customer and explained that Comcast periodically adjusts 
prices so we may continue to provide the best service possible and by updating 
our idhistructure, we would be committed to offering more products and 
services. The customer was also told that we added a Faith & Family 
Programming tier which included EWTN, Trinity Broadcast Network, The 
Inspirational Network and The Word. Sub satisfied. 

7. Com~1si.t: Customer had multiple customer service issues via telephone and 
technician services and experienced a billing issue. 



Resolutioq: Contacted customer and a letter of apology went out. MIS M a g e r ,  
Carmen Suquinahua corrected the billing on the account and the service issues 
were addressed and resolved. Customer satisfied. 

8. Com~laht:  Customer waited within a two-hour window to have his cable card 
installed. When tech arrived, he did not know what he was doing, according to 
the cwtomer. 
Resolution: A lead tech was dispatched and installed the cable card on his 
HDTV Sharp television. The service was up and running and the customers 
account was credited in the amount of $78.03. Sub satisfied. 

9. Com~laht:  Customer complained about the audio description on Turner Classic 
Movies. 
Resolution: Our headend was contacted and were waiting on a piece of 
equipment to restore the audio description. Service restored. 

10. Com~laint: Customer complained that the technician dispatched to her home 
bmke a shelving unit. Sub felt as though the technician was negligent. 
Resolution: Contact was made with customer and she was advised to have a 
repair person fix her shelve. Comcast reimbursed the customer for the expense. 
Sub satisfied. 

1 1. Comdaht: Customer complained that the digital signal is tiling and was told 
that this was a line issue. 
Resolutioq: A maintenance technician was dispatched and resolved the signal li 

issues entering his home. Sub satisfied. 
12. Com~laint: Customer sent in an email stating that Comcast continually raises 

rates but does not provide additional services or channels. 
Resolution: The customer was contacted and informed that we launched The 
Travel Channel, G41Tech TV, added a Faith and Family Tier which included 
EWTN, Trinity Broadcast Network, The Inspirational Network and The Word. 
We added College Sports TV and added a Hispanic Package. 

13. Com~lrint: Customer attempted to cancel account, overpaid electronically and 
by check. She called our local office and advised that she overpaid, once by 
check and the other electronically. As such, she received a $30 overdraft charge 
h m  her bank. 
Resolution: The customer's account was reversed $30.00 for the returned check 
fee. A refund in the amount of $40.68 was mailed to customer. Sub satisfied. 

14. Com~laint: Customer sent an iaquhy to the Office of Cable Administration, 
Montgomery County, Maryland, regarding a collections notice fiom Comcast of 
Alexandria, Virginia. 
Resolution: A letter was mailed to the former Alexandria Comcast customer 
explaining to him that his service was disconnected for non-payment of services 
ia June 2002. We received the equipment and the outstanding balance on July 5, 
2003. His account was not erroneously sent to collections. We attempted to 
collect a valid debt and the account was satisfied on July 5,2003. 

15. Com~laint: Customer complains of a rebate offer for Comcast High-Speed 
Intemet Service through Dell. Never received rebate offer. 
Resolution: The customer was contacted and advised that the offer fiom Dell has 
two parts. A) The Intemet service which is provided by Comcast and b) The 



rebate which comes h m  Dell. This is an offer to encourage customers to buy 
certain brands of computers, modems or routers h m  the store to increase sales on 
that particular brand. The store provides the customer with rebate 
instructions/steps in order for the customer to receive the rebate. The customer 
has to buy the product and send the bar code to an address given at the time of 
purchase within certain date range. If any of the steps are missed, the customer 
will not qualify for the rebate. Customer satisfied with response. 

16. Com~laint: Customer stated that she was doublebilled for services. 
Resolution: Spoke with customer and explained that she was not double-billed. 
She sent us a copy of her December payment but it was dated December 03 not 
December 04. Sub realized that she had made a mistake with her accounting. Sub 
was satisfied with the response. 

17. Com~laint; Customer complained that his email was abruptly cut-off and wanted 
to know why he received an automated email that stated he was in violation of 
network abuse. 
Resolution; Contact was made with the Abuse Team at Comcast and the emails 
were unblocked. Sub satisfied. 

18. Conmlalnt: Customer wrote in regarding missed appointments and lack of 
service. Sub disconnected service in fbll as a result. 
Resolution: Contact was made with the customer and an apology letter was 
mailed as a result of his inability to get assistance h m  the local system. 

19. Com~laint: Customer complained that her bill was incorrect. Customer had a 
dish buy back offer for sixteen months which provided a deep discount on digital 
service. 
Resolution: The customer was contacted and her account was "zeroed" out. The 
outstanding balance of $120.70 was correct, but was cleared as a goodwill 
gesture. Sub satisfied. 

20. Com~laint: Customer stated that his bill was inaccurate after he moved h m  his 
previous address to his new address, both in the City of Alexandria. 
Rmolution: Spoke to customer about her bill. The customer was refbnded by 
check for the balance of $95.05 and when his service was "transferred" we 
inadvertently transferred an additional credit balance of $95.05 to his new 
account. The customer actually paid $45.87 but was left with a balance of $49.1 8. 
The customer was informed that he owed the $49.1 8 but due to confusion, we 
cleared the balance and notified Northshore Agency. 

21. Comlaint: Customer requested to have a drop buried to his home. 
Regolution: Underground contractom went out and completed the drop bury and 
completed all of the outside work. Customer satisfied. 

22. Com~laint: Customer complains about incorrect spelling of her last name which 
appears on her Cable bill. 
Resolution: Our billing records were updated to include the correct spelling of 
the customers first and last name. Sub satisfied. 

23. Com~laint: Customer was upset because she disconnected her Comcast account 
but had previously signed up for Automatic Bill Pay. When she disconnected her 
service, the bank had already processed payment to deduct her balance due. 



Resolution: Sent a letter to the customer explaining what had transpired and 
mailed a manual refund in the amount of $78.18. 

24. Com~laint: Customer complained about the cable box being exposed outside of 
his condominium association and stated that he had spoken with five (5) customer 
account executives to get the situation resolved. 
Resolution: Our Quality Assurance team went out and took pictures of the work 
that needed to be completed. Our construction and maintenance crew went out 
and had locates called in and buried the exposed cables. 

25. Com~laint: Customer was upset. There were two missed appointments set up 
for this customer to no avail. 
Resolution; Spoke with customer and apologized for inconvenience. 
Additionally, we set up an installation appointment that was convenient for the 
customers schedule and the appointment went smoothly. The customer called 
back and "thanked us." Customer satisfied. 

26. Com~laht: Customer complained that his cable service had been in and out 
since the previous day and that the soonest he could be serviced was the following 
day. Sub did not think that this was adequate enough and wanted someone out the 
same day. 
Resolution: Contacted customer and informed him that our maintenance team 
was dispatched to Node 122 the same day. They found that the cable from the 
power supply to the Node was bad. As a result, they had to get permission to go 
into the customer's backyard, down a hill and in high bushes to get to the power 
supply and worked to restore the service. Sub satisfied. 

27. Com~laint: The customer's daughter attempted to get her deceased mother's 
account disconnected in full with the final bill mailed to her home address. 
Resolution: Contacted customer's daughter and disconnected cable service. Final 
billed mailed to her home. 

28. Com~laht: Customer complained that her sports channels and On Demand were 
blank. Set up a service call but tech was late and stated that the problem was in 
her building wiring. 
Resolution: Dispatched a maintenance technician who found that the in-house 
amplifier on the 4' floor was causing the problems. The amplifier was removed 
and levels were checked. Made customer contact and subs service up and 
running. Sub satisfied. 

29. Com~laht: Customer stated that she temporarily disconnects her cable service 
during the summer months and reconnects in the winter. She received bills for 
service because we could not access her yard to disconnect service at the tap. 
Resolution: We disconnected the customer's service from our system to avoid 
future bills from Comast and set up a special request to disconnect her service at 
the tap. A refund of $2.56 was mailed to the customer. 

30. Com~laint: Customer complained that he repeatedly received telemarketing 
calls and has asked to be removed &om all calling files. 
Resolution: Contact was made with customer and a letter was generated stating 
that the customer had been removed h m  all calling files. 

3 1 .  Com~lrint: Customer complained about receiving additional bills although her 
service was to be disconnected on May 27th. 



Resolution: Contact was made with the customer and a technician was sent out 
to physically disconnect service h m  the pedestal. A refbnd in the arnoubt of 
$19.13 was mailed. Customer satisfied. 

32. Complaint: Customer complained of poor reception on all local channels and 
had at least four to five technicians out. 
Resolution: Contact was made with the customer and a maintenance tech was 
dispatched to resolve the level issues outside of the home. Sub satisfied. 

33. Complaint: Customer requested to have a cracked pedestal replaced. 
Resolution: Contact was made with the customer and ow construction manager 
made arrangements to have the pedestal cover replaced. Customer sent a "note of 
thanks" praising the Cable TV Administrator and Comcast's construction 
manager for resolving the issue in a timely manner. 

34. Com~laint: Customer called and had requested to have his cable service 
disconnected the end of January 2005 but he continued to receive bills. 
Resolution: Our records indicate that the customer failed to call into the system 
to terminate service. However, the accounting & billing manager, removed the 
debt of $128.83 fiom the customers account. Cwtomer satisfied. 

35. Complaint: Customer's correspondence was received. Customer is Active Duty 
Military and was sent overseas yet customer requested a d i s c o ~ d o n  of service 
in February 2002. 
Resolution: Customer was disconnected and all credit adjustments were placed 
on his account. 

36. Com~laint: Customer called in for a new box and waited three days. He 
received a box that did not properly function. 
Resolution: Contact was made with the customer and an appointment was set up 
to swap out the HD DVR. Additionally, the account was adjusted in the amount 
of $109.90. Sub is satisfied. 

37. Comlaint: Customer moved h m  Cox Communications (Fairfax County) to the 
City of Alexandria. Had cable installed but the inside installation was not 
completed. 
Resolution: Contact was made with the customer and our technical team was 
dispatched to retack her cable to the wall. Her account was credited in the amount 
of $92.65 for the inconvenience. 

38. Com~laint: Customer complained that she is experiencing poor reception on all 
local channels and placed at least seven service calls. 
Resolution: A maintenance technician was sent out to the customer's home and 
they had to perform night work so the carrier to noise issue can be resolved. The 
work was scheduled and the service is working. Customer satisfied. 
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Deloitte. Deloitte & Touche LLP 
1700 Market Street 
Philadelphia, PA 191 03-3984 
USA 

Tel: +1 21 5 246 2300 
Fax: +1 215 569 2441 
www.deloitte.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors and Stockholder 
Comcast Cablevision of Virginia, Inc. 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

We have audited the accompanying schedule of gross revenues, as defined in Cable Franchise 
Agreement dated June 18, 1994 (the "Agreement"), of Comcast Cablevision of Virginia, Inc. (the 
"Company") for the franchise area of the City of Alexandria, Virginia (the "Schedule") for the 
year ended December 3 1,2004. This Schedule is the responsibility of the Company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this Schedule based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Schedule is free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Schedule, assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
Schedule presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such Schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the gross revenues, as 
defined in the Agreement referred to above, of Comcast Cablevision of Virginia, Inc. for the 
franchise area described above for the year ended December 3 1,2004. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and 
Stockholder of Comcast Cablevision of Virginia, Inc. and the City of Alexandria, Virginia and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

March 14,2005 

Member of 
Deloitte Touche Tohrnatsu 



COMCAST CABLEVISION OF VIRGINIA. INC. 

SCHEDULE OF GROSS REVENUES 
CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, VIRGINIA 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2004 

GROSS REVENUES $37,535,263 

NOTE: The amount of gross revenues above is recorded in accordance with the Cable Franchise 
Agreement dated June 18, 1994, between Comcast Cablevision of Virginia, Inc. and 
the City of Alexandria, Virginia. 

In accordance with the Federal Communications Commission (the "FCC") ruling that 
determined cable modem service is not a "cable service" as defined by the 
Communications Act, the gross revenues above do not include cable modem service 
revenues. 



OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Income $9,159,827 

AdJustments to reconcile net Income to net cash provided by operatlng acthrltle~: 

Depreciation and amortlzatlon 15,544,434 

Decrease in accounts receivable, prepald charge8 511,501 

Increase In accounts payable, accrued expenses, 

subscriber advance payments and other 3,291 , I  56 

i 

Net cash provlded by operating actlvltles 28,506,918 

COMCAST OF VIRGINIA, INC. 

ALEXANDRIA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2004 

(UNAUDITED) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net transactlons wlth Affiliate 

Net cash used In flnanclng actlvltles 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Addltlons to property and equipment, net -21,455.1 87 

Addltlons to deferred charges, net 4,090,495 

Increase In capital lease obllgatlon 1,273 

Net cash used In  lnvestlng activltles -25,544,410 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 385,382 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Beginning balance 

Ending Balance 
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Dear Comcast Shareholders, 
tmployees and tr~ends: 

If you want a sneak preview of the future, just step into a Comcast digital home 
anywhere in America. 

We are "personalizing" television-empowering our customers to watch what 
they want, when they want it. That's a choice they made 567 million times last 
year, and we expect to exceed 1 billion ON DEMAND views in 2005. 

We are revolutionizing the high-speed Internet experience-rolling out more 
valuable enhancements to our service in the past year than any other company, 
making Comcast.net the most popular broadband portal in the nation. 

We are launching a world-class, IP-powered phone service-Comcast Digital 
Voice-expanding our suite of products with a communications service that 
will be second to none. 

We are embracing the latest technologies-developing exciting, new integrated 
products that will fundamentally change our customers' entertainment and 
communications experience ... and we're just getting started. 

The strategy is working, as we demonstrated in 2004 by surpassing $20 billion 
in consolidated revenues for the first time in our history, while generating 
record operating and free cash flows!') 

We believe no other company is better positioned to innovate, differentiate 
and lead this rapidly evolving industry. All of this wlll help us deliver greater 
value to both customers and shareholders for years to come. I'd like to  devote 
this year's shareholders' letter to explaining the major reasons why. 



1. Our powerful technology platform gives us a competitive advantage. 

We invested billions of dollars over the past several years to upgrade our infrastructure to full 

two-way capability, providing us with the bandwidth to continuously enhance our services, 

launch exciting new consumer products and integrate new technologies as they emerge. 

Today, that upgrade is complete and the massive investment is behind 
us. The network we've built is robust, scalable and has enormous capacity 
to sustain our growth for years to come. Most importantly, it can handle 
video, data and voice transmissions simultaneously, giving us a powerful 
competitive advantage as these services rapidly converge within the 
digital home. 

This time "convergence" is real-as anyone who attended the 2005 Consumer Electronics 

Show can attest. Comcast is in an enviable position to capitalize on this trend and expand our 

product offerings, while focusing capital investments on revenue-generating opportunities. 

2. We're driving product differentiation through continuous innovation. 

Led by Steve Burke, Comcast's Chief Operating Officer, we have already developed a successful 
track record as a "new products company." In fact, new products have generated the majority 

of our recent growth, helping us drive average revenue per cable customer to more than $77 
per month in 2004, compared with $42 only six years ago. 

To build on this momentum, Steve and his team are committed to creating products and 

services that go beyond our competitors' offerings and deliver greater value by giving our 

customers superior choice, convenience and control. 



Our high-speed lnternet service is a perfect example. To strengthen our position as the 

No. 1 provider of broadband lnternet service in the U.S., we have added many exciting 

features to give our customers the fastest, richest and most personalized high-speed lnternet 

experience available, During 2004, these innovations helped us to attract a record 1.7 million 

new high-speed lnternet customers, driving a 38.5% increase in revenues from this product 

to $3.1 billion. 

Led by market-changing innovations like our ON DEMAND service, we're making similar 

strides in digital television. During 2004, nearly 1 million new subscribers signed up for Comcast 

Digital Cable, giving us nearly 8.7 million digital customers at year-end, or 40% of our total 

subscriber base. 

We're also winning more high-definition (HD) customers by offering the 
broadest choice of HD programming, including more local broadcast and 
sports channels than our competitors. In early 2005, we surpassed 1 million 
HD set-top boxes in customers' homes, and the demand for this service 
continues to accelerate as sales of HDTV sets grow. Digital video recorders 
(DVRs) are also in high demand, with more than 180,000 installations 
during the fourth quarter alone. 

This year we'll make our first big step toward all-digital television by beginning digital 

simulcasts of our analog channel offerings. This will enable us to  provide 100% digital-quality 

pictures across every single channel in our lineup and give us the flexibility to  roll out advanced 

new services that meet the needs of different consumers. 



3. We're distinguishing our content with unique, cutting-edge programming. 

Comcast owns and operates many of the hottest and most successful cable networks today, 

including E! Entertainment Television, Style, The Golf Channel, Outdoor Life Network, G4, 

International Channel Networks and Comcast SportsNet. We're also a founding investor in N 
One, a new network aimed at African American viewers. 

During 2004, these top brands achieved record revenue and cash flow as we continued to 

expand our networks' original programming, helping us to attract loyal and passionate viewers 

in highly desirable demographic segments. 

We also enhanced our digital television offering by partnering with Sony Pictures and 

other investors to  acquire Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer (MGM), giving our customers access to a 

rich library of more than 7,000 movies and 30,000 classic TV shows. Our investment of 

$257 million will enable us to  create new networks and expand our ON DEMAND content, 

including a fresh selection of up to 200 movie titles and 100 TV shows every month-at no 

additional charge to our customers. 

Working with the National Football League, we created the ON DEMAND sensation NFL 

Replay, which attracted more than 8 million views during the 2004-05 NFL season. We also 

expanded our regional sports presence, which now includes regional sports networks and team 

channels in Atlanta, BaltimoreMlashington, Central California, Chicago, Dallas and Philadelphia. 

High-quality children's content also plays a big part in our programming 
strategy. During 2005, through a partnership with HIT Entertailiment, 
PBS and Sesame Workshop, we will introduce PBS Kids Sprout, a new 
24-hour network and companion ON DEMAND service for preschool kids, 
featuring perennial favorites like "Sesame Street," "Bob the Builder" and 
many more. 



4. We're launching Comcast Digital Voice-a new growth engine. 

We launched Comcast Digital Voice in three markets in late 2004. By year-end, we will be 

marketing this service to roughly 15 million homes in 20 markets. And by the end of 2006, we'll 

be able to deliver the service to approximately 40 million homes across our national footprint. 

We are targeting to achieve a 20% penetration of these homes, or nearly 8 million subscribers, 

within five years, creating a substantial new revenue opportunity. 

Our goal is to deliver a superior phone service-one that delivers the 
quality, reliability and simplicity of traditional wireline service, plus all of 
the exciting features that an IP-based service makes possible. Over time, 
this will include services that integrate video, data and voice -such as 
videophone and unified messaging- to continuously differentiate Comcast 
Digital Voice and create a unique digital communications experience in  
the home. 

Comcast has the people and experience to make it happen. We already serve nearly 

1.2 million circuit-switched phone customers. We have an experienced staff of more than 
1,000 employees dedicated to  voice services. And we have the network management, field 
operations, back-office and customer care teams in place to  hit the ground running. 

5. We're reinventing cable advertising for the digital age. 

By simplifying cable advertising buying and making it more targeted than broadcast media, 
Comcast aims to become the preferred choice of national and local advertisers. Last year, 

revenues from our advertising business grew 15.7% to nearly $1.3 billion, driven by our successful 
regional interconnect strategy and a strong year from political advertising. 



Comcast is leading the drive to create more one-to-one marketing solutions through the 

"personalization" of cable advertising. For example, during 2004, we introduced new AdtagTM 

and Adcopy" technologies across 18 of our top 25 markets, giving advertisers the ability to 

target specific audiences and customize ads in ways broadcast television can't match. Longer 

term, we're working on new concepts to help advertisers tap into the enormous potential of 

our interactive capabilities and our growing ON DEMAND audience. 

6. We're financially strong and have a sustainable growth model. 

Multiple products now drive our growth. During 2004, we demonstrated the strength of that 

business model by increasing revenues by nearly 1 1%, boosting operating cash flow(') by nearly 

18% and generating nearly $2 billion of free cash flow('). We also finished the year with the 

strongest balance sheet and the greatest financial flexibility in our history. 

By continuing to launch new and enhanced products, we believe we have 
the potential to achieve double-digit revenue and operating cash flow(') 
growth for years to come, without significant reinvestment in our network 
infrastructure. We expect this will contribute to free cash flow(I) growth of 
35-45% in 2005. 

We'll employ this free cash flow in two primary ways: reinvesting in our business to drive 

future growth and returning capital to our shareholders. During 2004, for example, we invested 
approximately $600 million to increase our presence and drive product innovation, and our 

outstanding team continues to evaluate new opportunities, such as our strategic partnerships 

with Motorola and TiVo, both announced in March 2005. (See sidebar on page 12.) 



We also repurchased $1.3 billion in common stock during 2004, and we redeemed for 

cash several debt issues that were exchangeable into Comcast stock a t  a cost of $609 million, 

effectively increasing the return of capital to  shareholders to nearly $2 billion during the year. 

7. We have a world-class team that knows how to win. 

My father, Ralph Roberts, founded Corncast on the principles of integrity, teamwork and 
excellence, establishing a culture that today combines the best practices of the world's most 

innovative corporations with the entrepreneurial spirit that has been the heartbeat of our 
company from the beginning. As a result, we've been able to recruit and develop many of the 
finest talents in our industry and provide them with an environment in which they can thrive. 

Over the past five years alone, this outstanding team has helped us  
lead a complete transformation of our company in which we doubled our 
revenues, integrated one of the largest acquisitions in business history, 
completely upgraded our cable network, expanded our digital cable 
business, built the nation's No. 1 broadband Internet service and laid the 
groundwork for our launch into digital voice communications. 

It could not be a greater honor or pleasure to lead such a dedicated group of individuals, 
and it's because of them that I believe Comcast will continue to innovate, differentiate and 
lead.. .elevating us to even higher levels of performance. There's never been a better team-or 
a more exciting time-to make it happen. 

Sincerely, 

Brian L. Roberts 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
Comcast Corporation 

March 30, 2005 

THE C L O S E R  Y O U  L O O K ,  THE MORE Y O U ' L L  " C  THE DIFFERENCE." 

The annual report you're reeding i. full of frotm and figurea that demorutrate oar buminemm strategy L on the right 
traok. But il you redly want to evaluate our potential. I'd enoourage you to experienoe our new prodnots end 
oamtomer menioe firmthand, and to keep trwk of our progreu at www.oomoaat.oom. I think you'll nee there 
really L a Cornorst Merenos-and it's getting bigger every day. 



COMCAST CORPORATION is the nation's leading provider of cable, entertainment and communications 

products and services. With 21.5 million cable customers and 7 million high-speed Internet customers, Comcast 

is principally involved in the development, management and operation of broadband cable networks and in 

the delivery of programming content. 

The Company's content networks and investments include El Entertainment Television, Style Network, The Golf 

Channel, Outdoor Life Network, G4, International Channel Networks, N One and regional sports and news 

networks. The Company also has a majority ownership in Comcast-Speaacor, whose major holdings include the 

Philadelphia Flyers NHL hockey team, the Philadelphia 76en NBA basketball team and two large multipurpose 

arenas in Philadelphia. 

Financial Highlights 
Comcast Cwporation and Subsidiaries 

Comprehensive financial reporting is also contained in Comcast's Annual Report on Form 10-K and in our Proxy Statement. 
We invite you to refer to those documents for a more detailed discussion of our performance. 

We define Operating Cash Flow as operating income before depreciation and amortization and impairment charges, if any, 
related to fixed and intangible assets and gains or losses from the sale of assets, if any. 

2003 

S 18,348 
6,392 
4,430 
1.954 
(2 18) 

3.458 
3,240 
4.003 

109,159 
23,835 

(Dollan in milfiond 

Revenues 
Operating cash flow 
Depreciation and amortization 
Operating income 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Discontinued operationsll~ 
Net income 
Cash and short-term investments 
Total assets 
Long-term debt 

We define Free Cash Flow as Operating Cash Flow less net interest, cash paid for taxes, and capital expenditures. Reconciliation 
of this item appears on page 76. 

I1)ln September 2003 we sold our intemst In QVC, Inc. to Liberty Media Cocporat~on. QVC is presented as discontinued operations for all periods. 

2004 

S 20.307 
7.531 
4,623 
2,908 

970 
- 

970 
2.007 

104,694 
20.093 

This report may contain forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned that such forward-looking statements involve risk 
and uncertainties that could significantly affsct actual results from those expressed in any such forward-looking statements. 
Readers are directed to Comcast's Annual Report on Form 10-K for a description of such risks and uncertainties. 
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Dear Comcast Shareholders, 
Employees and Friends: 

If you want a sneak preview of the future, just step into a Comcast digital home 
anywhere in America. 

We are "personalizing" television-empowering our customers to watch what 
they want, when they want it. That's a choice they made 567 million times last 
year, and we expect to exceed 1 billion ON DEMAND views in 2005. 

We are revolutionizing the high-speed Internet experience-rolling out more 
valuable enhancements to our service in the past year than any other company, 
making Comcast.net the most popular broadband portal in the nation. 

We are launching a world-class, IP-powered phone service-Comcast Digital 
Voice-expanding our suite of products with a communications service that 
will be second to none. 

We are embracing the latest technologies-developing exciting, new integrated 
products that will fundamentally change our customers' entertainment and 
communications experience., . and we're just getting started. 

The strategy is working, as we demonstrated in 2004 by surpassing $20 billion 
in consolidated revenues for the first time in our history, while generating 
record operating and free cash flows!" 

We believe no other company is better positioned to innovate, differentiate 
and lead this rapidly evolving industry. All of this will help us deliver greater 
value to both customers and shareholders for years to come. I'd like to devote 
this year's shareholders' letter to explaining the major reasons why. 



1. Our powerful technology platform gives us a competitive advantage. 

We invested billions of dollars over the past several years to upgrade our infrastructure to full 

two-way capability, providing us with the bandwidth to  continuously enhance our services, 

launch exciting new consumer products and integrate new technologies as they emerge. 

Today, that upgrade is complete and the massive investment is behind 
us. The network we've built is robust, scalable and has enormous capacity 
to sustain our growth for years to come. Most importantly, it can handle 
video, data and voice transmissions simultaneously, giving us a powerful 
competitive advantage as these services rapidly converge within the 
digital home. 

This time "convergence" is real-as anyone who attended the 2005 Consumer Electronics 

Show can attest. Comcast is in an enviable position to capitalize on this trend and expand our 

product offerings, while focusing capital investments on revenue-generating opportunities. 

2. We're driving product differentiation through continuous innovation. 

Led by Steve Burke, Comcast's Chief Operating Officer, we have already developed a successful 

track record as a "new products company." In fact, new products have generated the majority 

of our recent growth, helping us drive average revenue per cable customer to  more than $77 

per month in 2004, compared with $42 only six years ago. 

To build on this momentum, Steve and his team are committed to creating products and 

services that go beyond our competitors' offerings and deliver greater value by giving our 

customers superior choice, convenience and control. 



Our high-speed lnternet service is a peifect example. To strengthen our position as the 

No. 1 provider of broadband lnternet service in the U.S., we have added many exciting 

features to give our customers the fastest, richest and most personalized high-speed lnternet 

experience available. During 2004, these innovations helped us to attract a record 1.7 million 

new high-speed lnternet customers, driving a 38.5% increase in revenues from this product 

to  $3.1 billion. 

Led by market-changing innovations like our ON DEMAND service, we're making similar 

strides in digital television. During 2004, nearly 1 million new subscribers signed up for Comcast 

Digital Cable, giving us nearly 8.7 million digital customers at year-end, or 40% of our total 

subscriber base. 

We're also winning more high-definition (HD) customers by offering the 
broadest choice of HD programming, including more local broadcast and 
sports channels than our competitors. In early 2005, we surpassed 1 million 
HD set-top boxes in customers' homes, and the demand for this service 
continues to accelerate as sales of HDTV sets grow. Digital video recorders 
(DVRs) are also in high demand, with more than 180,000 installations 
during the fourth quarter alone. 

This year we'll make our first big step toward all-digital television by beginning digital 

simulcasts of our analog channel offerings. This will enable us to provide 100% digital-quality 

pictures across every single channel in our lineup and give us the flexibility to  roll out advanced 

new services that meet the needs of different consumers. 



3. We're distinguishing our content with unique, cutting-edge programming. 

Comcast owns and operates many of the hottest and most successful cable networks today, 

including E! Entertainment Television, Style, The Golf Channel, Outdoor Life Network, G4, 

International Channel Networks and Comcast SportsNet. We're also a founding investor in TV 

One, a new network aimed at African American viewers. 

During 2004, these top brands achieved record revenue and cash flow as we continued to 

expand our networks' original programming, helping us to attract loyal and passionate viewers 

in highly desirable demographic segments. 

We also enhanced our digital television offering by partnering with Sony Pictures and 

other investors to acquire Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer (MGM), giving our customers access to  a 

rich library of more than 7,000 movies and 30,000 classic TV shows. Our investment of 
$257 million will enable us t o  create new networks and expand our ON DEMAND content, 

including a fresh selection of up to  200 movie titles and 100 TV shows every month-at no 
additional charge to our customers. 

Working with the National Football League, we created the ON DEMAND sensation NFL 

Replay, which attracted more than 8 million views during the 2004-05 NFL season. We also 
expanded our regional sports presence, which now includes regional sports networks and team 

channels in Atlanta, BaltimoreMlashington, Central California, Chicago, Dallas and Philadelphia. 

High-quality children's content also plays a big part in our programming 
strategy. During 2005, through a partnership with HIT Entertainment, 
PBS and Sesame Workshop, we will introduce PBS Kids Sprout, a new 
24-hour network and companion ON DEMAND service for preschool kids, 
featuring perennial favorites like "Sesame Street," "Bob the Builder" and 
many more. 



4. We're launching Comcast Digital Voice-a new growth engine. 

We launched Comcast Digital Voice in three markets in late 2004. By year-end, we will be 

marketing this service to roughly 15 million homes in 20 markets. And by the end of 2006, we'll 

be able to deliver the service to approximately 40 million homes across our national footprint. 

We are targeting to achieve a 20% penetration of these homes, or nearly 8 million subscribers, 

within five years, creating a substantial new revenue opportunity. 

Our goal is to deliver a superior phone service-one that delivers the 
quality, reliability and simplicity of traditional wireline service, plus all of 
the exciting features that an IP-based service makes possible. Over time, 
this will include services that integrate video, data and voice-such as  
videophone and unified messaging- to continuously differentiate Comcast 
Digital Voice and create a unique digital communications experience in 
the home. 

Comcast has the people and experience to make it happen. We already serve nearly 
1.2 million circuit-switched phone customers. We have an experienced staff of more than 

1,000 employees dedicated to voice services. And we have the network management, field 
operations, back-office and customer care teams in place to hit the ground running. 

5. We're reinventing cable advertising for the digital age. 

By simplifying cable advertising buying and making it more targeted than broadcast media, 

Comcast aims to become the preferred choice of national and local advertisers. Last year, 

revenues from our advertising business grew 15.7% to nearly $1.3 billion, driven by our successful 

regional interconnect strategy and a strong year from political advertising. 



Comcast is leading the drive to create more one-to-one marketing solutions through the 

"personalization" of cable advertising. For example, during 2004, we introduced new Adtag'" 

and Adcopy" technologies across 18 of our top 25 markets, giving advertisers the ability to 

target specific audiences and customize ads in ways broadcast television can't match. Longer 

term, we're working on new concepts to help advertisers tap into the enormous potential of 

our interactive capabilities and our growing ON DEMAND audience. 

6. We're financially strong and have a sustainable growth model. 

Multiple products now drive our growth. During 2004, we demonstrated the strength of that 
business model by increasing revenues by nearly 1 I%, boosting operating cash flowll) by nearly 
18% and generating nearly $2 billion of free cash flow('). We also finished the year with the 
strongest balance sheet and the greatest financial flexibility in our history. 

By continuing to launch new and enhanced products, we believe we have 
the potential to achieve double-digit revenue and operating cash flow(') 
growth for years to come, without significant reinvestment in our network 
infrastructure. We expect this will contribute to free cash flow(') growth of 
35-45% in 2005. 

We'll employ this free cash flow in two primary ways: reinvesting in our business to drive 
future growth and returning capital to our shareholders. During 2004, for example, we invested 
approximately $600 million to increase our presence and drive product innovation, and our 
outstanding team continues to evaluate new opportunities, such as our strategic partnerships 
with Motorola and TiVo, both announced in March 2005. (See sidebar on page 12.) 



We also repurchased $1.3 billion in common stock during 2004, and we redeemed for 

cash several debt issues that were exchangeable into Comcast stock at a cost of $609 million, 

effectively increasing the return of capital to shareholders to nearly $2 billion during the year. 

7. We have a world-class team that knows how to win. 

My father, Ralph Roberts, founded Comcast on the principles of integrity, teamwork and 

excellence, establishing a culture that today combines the best practices of the world's most 

innovative corporations with the entrepreneurial spirit that has been the heartbeat of our 
company from the beginning. As a result, we've been able t o  recruit and develop many of the 
finest talents in our industry and provide them with an environment in which they can thrive. 

Over the past five years alone, this outstanding team has helped us 
lead a complete transformation of our company in which we doubled our 
revenues, integrated one of the largest acquisitions in business history, 
completely upgraded our cable network, expanded our digital cable 
business, built the nation's No. 1 broadband Internet service and laid the 
groundwork for our launch into digital voice communications. 

It could not be a greater honor or pleasure to lead such a dedicated group of individuals, 
and it's because of them that I believe Comcast will continue to  innovate, differentiate and 
lead ... elevating us to even higher levels of performance. There's never been a better team-or 
a more exciting time-to make it happen. 

Sincerely, 

Brian 1. Roberts 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
Corncast Corporation 

March 30, 2005 
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COMCAST CORPORATION is the nation's leading provider of  cable, entertainment and communications 

products and services. With 21.5 million cable customers and 7 million high-speed Internet customers, Comcast 

is principally involved in the development, management and operation of broadband cable networks and in 

the delivery of  programming content. 

The Company's content networks and investments include El Entertainment Television, Style Network, The Golf 

Channel, Outdoor Life Network, G4, International Channel Networks, N One and regional sports and news 

networks. The Company also has a majority ownership in Comcast-Spectacor, whose major holdings include the 

Philadelphia Flyers NHL hockey team, the Philadelphia 76ers NBA basketball team and two large multipurpose 

arenas in Philadelphia. 

Financial Highlights 
Corncast C o w t i o n  and Subsidiaries 

(1) In Septembar 2003 we sold our intemst in QVC, Inc. to Liberty Media Corporation. QVC is presented as discontinued operations for all periods. 

Comprehensive financial reporting is also contained in Comcast's Annual Report on Form 10-K and in our Proxy Statement. 
We invite you to refer to those documents for a more detailed discussion of our performance. 

2003 

S 18,348 
6.392 
4,438 
1,954 
(218) 

3,458 
3,240 
4.043 

109,159 
23,835 

(Dolkn in million# 

Revenues 
Operating cash flow 
Depredation and amortization 
Operating income 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Discontinued operationsfl) 
Net income 
Cash and short-term investments 
Total assets 
Long-term debt 

We define Operating Cash Flow as operating income before depreciation and amortization and impairment charges, if any, 
related to fixed and intangible assets and gains or losses from the sale of assets, if any. 

e 
2004 

1 20,307 
7,531 
4,623 

2.908 
970 - 
970 

2,007 
104,694 

20,093 

We define Free Cash Flow as Operating Cash Flow less net interest, cash paid for taxes, and capital expenditures. Reconciliation 
of this item appears on page 76. 

This report may contain forward-looking statements. Readen are cautioned that such forward-looking statements involve risk 
and uncertainties that could significantly affect actual results from those expressed in any such forward-looking statements. 
Readers are directed to Comcast's Annual Report on Form 10-K for a description of such risks and uncertainties. 

b COMCAST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 



FINANCIAL REPORT 

Management's Discussion and Analysis o f  Financial Condition and 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Results of Operations 18 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ReportofManagement . . . . . .  32 

. . . .  Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . . . . . . . . . . . . .  33 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Consolidated Balance Sheet 34 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Consolidated Statement of Operations 35 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 36 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity 37 

. . . . . .  Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . .  38 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures . . 76 

. . . . . . .  . . .  Market for the  Registrant's Common Equity 76 

. . .  . . . .  . . . . . . .  . . . . .  Selected Financial Data . . .  77 

Board of Directors and Corporate Executives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  78 

. . . . . . . . . . .  Division Executives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  79 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Shareholder Information 80 



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

OVERVIEW 

We are principally involved in the management and operation of broadband communications networks (our cable segment) and in 
the management of programming content that is distributed over national cable television networks (our content segment). In 2004, 
we received over 95% of our revenue from our cable segment, primarily through monthly subscriptions to our video, high-speed 
Internet and phone services, as well as from advertising. Subscribers typically pay us monthly, based on rates and related charges that 
vary according to their chosen level of service and the type of equipment they use. Revenue from our content segment is derived 
from the sale of advertising time and affiliation agreements with cable and satellite television companies. We have several 
competitors in each aspect of our businesses, including satellite providers, DSL providers, telephone companies and broadcast 
networks. 

Highlights for the year 2004 include the following: 

Revenue growth of 10.4% in our cable segment compared to the year 2003, driven by continued subscriber growth in ourdigital 
cable and high-speed lnternet services and rate increases in our video services. Our subscriber growth is attributable to new and 
improved products and advanced services in our digital cable and high-speed lnternet services. These include video on demand 
("VOD" or "On Demand"], high-definition television ("HDN") programming and digital video recorders ("DVRNs) in our video 
services and a fast and reliable network, enhanced lnternet portal, video mail and additional content in our high-speed lnternet 
services; 

Operating income before depreciation and amortization growth of 17.6% in our cable segment compared to the year 2003, 
resulting from our revenue growth, efficiencies achieved and volume-related savings based on our size; 

Substantial completion of our cable systems upgrade; 

Investment in and long-term access to technology platforms and national fiber-optic networks that allow us to control the 
development, delivery and quality of our digital and advanced services for our video, high-speed lnternet and phone services; and 

Repurchases of approximately 46.9 million shares of our Class A Special common stock for aggregate consideration of $1.328 
billion pursuant to our Board authorized repurchase program. 

The following discussion provides the details of these highlights and insights into our consolidated financial statements, including 
business developments, critical accounting judgments and estimates used in preparing the financial statements, and discussions of 
our results of operations, liquidity and capital resources. 

We encourage you to read the section entitled "Risk Factors" from our Annual Report on Form-10-K, and we incorporate that 
section by reference into this annual report. 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS 

We operate our businesses in an increasingly competitive, highly regulated and technologically complex environment. We are the 
largest video, broadband high-speed lnternet and cable phone service provider in the United States. We have substantially 
completed the upgrade of our broadband communications networks, allowing us to provide customers with new and improved 
products and advanced services in our video, high-speed lnternet and phone services. We also have expanded the ownership and 
management of our content businesses on national, regional and local levels. 

Cable 
On November 18,2002, we completed the acquisition of AT&T Corp.'s broadband business, which we refer to as "Broadband" and 
"the Broadband acquisition." The Broadband acquisition substantially increased the size of our cable operations and caused significant 
changes in our capital structure, including a substantially higher amount of debt. As a result, direct comparisons of ourresults of 
operations for periods prior to November 18, 2002, to subsequent periods are not meaningful. 

During 2004, we expanded our efforts to acquire and develop technology that will drive product diffellentiation and new applications 
and extend our nationwide fiber-optic network. We achieved these objectives in 2004 through strategic agreements signed with 
Gemstar-N Guide and Microsoft, which enable us to control and develop the enhancement of the user interface and the 
functionality of our service offerings, such as our interactive programming guide and our VOD and DVR service. In addition, we and 
Gemstar formed an entity to  develop and enhance interactive programming guides. In December 2004, we also announced a 
long-term agreement with Level 3 Communications that is part of the extension of our fiber-optic network. This national network, or 
"backbone," provides a technically-advanced, nationwide broadband network over which we can deliver new and enhanced services. 

Content 
On May 10,2004, we completed the acquisition of TechTV Inc. ("TechTV") for approximately $300 million in cash. On May 28,2004, G4 
and TechN began operating as one network that is available to approximately 47 million cable and satellite homes nationwide as of 
December 31, 2004, and provides video and computer game-related programming. 
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On July 28,2004, we exchanged approximately 120 million shares of Liberty Media Corporation ("Liberty") Series A common stock 
that we held with Liberty for cash of $547 million, an additional 10.4% interest in E! Entertainment Television ("E! Entertainment") and 
100% of International Channel Networks, a cultural and heritage-related national cable network that is available to approximately 
10 million cable homes nationwide as of December 31,2004. 

QVC 
On September 17,2003, we completed the sale to Liberty of our approximate 57% interest in QVC, Inc, for approximately $7.7 billion. 
We received from Liberty $4.0 billion of three-year senior unsecured floating rate notes, approximately 218 million shares of Liberty 
Series A common stock valued at $2.339 billion, and cash of $1.35 billion. QVC is presented as a discontinued operation in our 
consolidated financial statements. 

Refer to Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our acquisitions and other significant events. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

We believe our judgments and related estimates associated with the valuation and impairment testing of our cable franchise rights 
and the accounting for income taxes and legal contingencies are critical in the preparation of our financial statements. Management 
has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting judgments and estimates with the Audit Committee of our 
Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee has reviewed our disclosures relating to them presented below. 

Valuation and Impairment Testlng of Cable Franchise Rights 
Our cable systems are constructed and operated under non-exclusive franchises granted by state or local governmental authorities 
for varying lengths of time. As of December 31,2004, we sewed approximately 4,500 franchise areas in the United States. We have 
concluded that our cable franchise rights have an indefinite useful life since there are no legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, 
economic or other factors limiting the period over which these rights will contribute to our cash flow. Accordingly, our cable franchise 
rights are not subject to amortization but are assessed periodically for impairment in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" ("SFAS No. 142"). 

We have acquired these cable franchise rights either directly from local franchise authorities or through many separate cable system 
acquisitions that include multiple franchise territories. Upon acquisition, we integrate the individual franchise territories into our 
national footprint, typically by incorporating the management of those territories into our existing geographic regions. We control 
the sourcing of content. pricing, marketing and branding, and capital deployment throughout the company as if our cable franchise 
rights were a single asset. Therefore, we have concluded that we operate our cable franchise rights as a single asset within our cable 
segment From time to time, however, certain cable franchise rights may be separated and sold in units below the cable segment 
level. We have concluded that Emerging Issues Task Force 02-07, "Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment of Indefinite-Lived 
Intangible Assets," supports the testing of our cable franchise rights for impairment at a level no higher than where the assets are 
both operated together and essentially inseparable. Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142 in 2002, we tested our cable franchise rights 
for impairment at the cable segment level. Effective in the fist quarter of 2004, we changed the unit of accounting used for testing 
impairment to geographic regions. 

We assess the recoverability of our cable franchise rights annually or more frequently whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. We estimate the fair value of our cable franchise rights primarily based on 
multiples of operating income before depreciation and amortization generated by the underlying assets, discounted cash flow 
analyses, analyses of current market transactions, and profitability information, including estimated future operating resutk, ttends or 
other determinants of fair value. If the value of our cable franchise rights determined by these evaluations is less than its canying 
amount, an impairment charge would be recognized for the difference between the estimated fair value and the carrying value of the 
assets. Future advene changes in market conditions or in the operating results of the related business may indicate an inability to 
recover the carrying value of the assets, thereby possibly requiring a future impairment charge. 

The carrying amount of cable franchise rights related to some of our historical cable systems is significantly less than their current 
estimated fair value largely because we acquired many of these rights directly from local franchise authorities rather than through 
separate cable system acquisitions. Conversely, the canying amount of cable franchise rights for our more recent cable system 
acquisitions has not been significantly reduced through amortization (and has not been reduced at all for acquisitions made 
subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 142). Nevertheless, testing for impairment at a level higher than the individual franchise 
agreement or cable system level reduces the likelihood of a future impairment charge related to our cable franchise rights. 

Income Taxes 
Our provision for income taxes is based on our current period income, changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, income 
tax rates, and tax planning opportunities available in the jurisdictions in which we operate. From time to time, we engage in 
transactions in which the tax consequences may be subject to some uncertainty. Examples of such transactions include business 

COMCAST CORPORATION AN0 SUBSIDIARIES 19 



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

acquisitions and disposals, including like-kind exchanges, issues related to consideration paid or received in connection with 
acquisitions, and certain financing transactions. Significant judgment is required in assessing and estimating the tax consequences of 
these transactions. We prepare and file tax returns based on our interpretation of tax laws and regulations and record estimates 
based on these judgments and interpretations. 

In the normal course of business, our tax returns are subject t o  examination by various taxing authorities. Such examinations may 
result in future tax and interest assessments by these taxing authorities, and we record a liability when we believe that it is probable 
that we will be assessed. We adjust our estimates periodically because of ongoing examinations by and settlements with the various 
taxing authorities, as well as changes in tax laws', regulations and precedent. The financial statement effects o f  income tax 
uncertainties that arise in connection with business combinations and those associated with entities acquired in business combina- 
tions are discussed in Note 2 to  our consolidated financial statements. The consolidated tax provision of any given year includes 
adjustments to prior year income tax provisions that are considered appropriate and any related estimated interest. We believe that 
adequate accruals have been made for income taxes. Differences between the estimated and actual amounts determined upon 
ultimate resolution, individually or in the aggregate, are not expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated finan- 
cial position but could possibly be material to our consolidated results of operations or cash flow of  any one period. 

Legal Contingencies 
We are subject t o  legal, regulatory and other proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of our business and, in certain 
cases, those that we assume from an acquired entity in a business combination. We record an estimated liability for those 
proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of business based upon the probable and reasonably estimable criteria 
contained in SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies." For those litigation contingencies assumed in a business combination 
subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 142, we record a liability based on estimated fair value when wch fair value is determinable. 
We review outstanding claims with internal as well as external counsel t o  assess probability and estimates of loss. The risk of loss is 
reassessed as new information becomes available and liabilities are adjusted, as appropriate. The actual cost of resolving a claim may 
be substantially different from the amount of the liability recorded. 

Significant and Subjective Estimates 
The following discussion and analysis of our results of operations and financial condition is based upon our consolidated financial 
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of  assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of  contingent assets and contingent liabilities. We base our judgments on historical 
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the 
basis for making estimates about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. 

Refer to Note 2 t o  our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our accounting policies with respect to these and 
other items. 

RESULTS OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS 

Consolidated Operating Results 

Revenues 
Consolidated revenues for the years 2004 and 2003 increased $1.959 billion and $10.246 billion, respectively, from the previous year. 
Of these increases, $1.824 billion and $10.142 billion, respectively, relate to our cable segment and $159 million and $107 million, 
respectively, relate to our content segment, which are both discussed separately below. The remaining changes primarily relate to our 
other business activities, primarily Corncast-Spectator. 

Operating, seillng, general and administrative expenses 
Consolidated operating, selling, general and administrative expenses for the years 2004 and 2003 increased $820 million and 
s.690 billion, respectively, from the previous year. Of these increases, $703 million and $6.590 billion, respectively, relate to our cable 
segment and $108 million and $63 million, respectively, relate to our content segment, both of which are discussed separately below. 
The remaining increases relate to our other business activities, primarily Corncast-Spectator and corporate activities. 

Depreciation 
The changes in depreciation expense for the yeas 2004 and 2003 are primarily attributable to our cable segment The increase in our 
cable segment for the year 2004 compared to the previous year is principally due to the higher level of depreciation associated with 
capital expenditures related to  our cable systems upgrade. The increase in our cable segment for the year 2003 compared to the 
previous year is principally due to  the effects of the Broadband acquisition, as well as our increased level of capital expenditures. 
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Amortlzatlon 
The changes in amortization expense for the years 2004 and 2003 are primarily attributable to our cable segment. The decrease in our 
cable segment for the year 2004 compared to the previous year relates to decreases in the amortization of our franchiserelated 
customer relationship intangible assets. As a result of the Broadband acquisition, we recorded approximately $3.4 billion of franchise 
related customer relationship intangible assets, which we are amortizing over their average estimated useful life of approximately four 
years. In the fourth quarter of 2003, we reduced the value of these intangible assets because we obtained updated valuation reports, 
which resulted in lower amortization expense. This decrease was partially ofket by amortization associated with intangibles acquired 
in the Gemstar transaction. This decrease was also offset by our content segment, principally associated with intangibles acquired in 
the TechTV and Liberty exchange transactions. (See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion about 
these transactions). The increase in our cable segment for the year 2003 compared to the previous year relates principally to the 
effects of the Broadband acquisition. 

2003 to 2002 Historical Compsrlsons 
On November 18,2002, we completed the acquisition of AT&T Corp.'s bmadband business, which we refer to as "Broadband* and 
"the Broadband Acquisition." The Broadband acquisition substantially increased the size of our cable operations and caused 
significant changes in our capital structure, including a substantially higher amount of debt. As a result, direct comparisons of our 
consolidated results of operations for periods prior to November 18,2002, to subsequent periods am not meaningful. Please refer to 
our 2003 to 2002 historical and pro forma cable segment discussion below. 

Segment Operating Results 
Operating income before depreciation and amortization is the primary basis we use to measure the operational strength and 
performance of our segments. Operating income before depreciation and amortization is defined as operating income before 
depreciation and amortization, impairment charges, if any, related to fixed and intangible assets, and gains or losses from the sale of 
assets, if any. As such, it eliminates the significant level of non-cash depreciation and amortization expense that results from the 
capital intensive nature of our businesses and from intangible assets recognized in business combinations, and it is unaffected by our 
capital struaum or investment activities. Our management and Board of Directon use this measure in evaluating our consolidated 
operating performance and the operating performance of all of our operating segments. This metric is used to allocate resources and 
capital to our operating segments and is a significant component of our annual incentive compensation programs. We believe that 
this measure is also useful to investors as it is one of the bases for comparing our operating performance with other companies in our 
industries, although our measure may not be directly comparable to similar measures used by other companies. Because we use 
operating income before depreciation and amortization as the measure of our segment profit or loss, we reconcile it to operating 
income, the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with Generally Accepted Account- 
ing Principles ("GAAP"), in the business segment footnote to our consolidated financial statements. This measure should not be 
considered a substitute for operating income (loss), net income (loss), net cash provided by operating activities or other measures of 
performance or liquidity reported in accordance with GAAP. 

All percentages are calculated based on actual amounts. Minor differences may exist due to rounding. 

Cable Segment 
2004 to 2003 Historrcal Comparrsons 

'The following table presents our cable segment operating results (dollars in millions): 

Video 
High-speed Internet 
Phone 
Advertising sales 
Other 
Franchise fees 608 38 6.3 
p~p - 

Revenues 
Operating expenses 
Sellina. aeneral and administrative exDenses 

Operating income before depreciation and amortization I $ 7,471 1 $ 6,350 $1.121 17.6% 
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The following tables present our subscriber and monthly average revenue statistics on both a historical and a pro forma basis. The pm 
forrna adjustments reflect the addition of approximately 72,000 video subscribers acquired in various small acquisitions during the 
years presented as though the acquisitions occurred on January 1, 2003. The impact of these acquisitions on our segment oper- 
ating results was not material (subscribers in thousands). 

Historical December 31, Pm Form December 31. 
fl 

- - - - - - - - - - - -  

Video subscriben 
High-speed Internet subscribers 
Phone subscriben 

Monthly average phone revenue per phone subscriber ( 546.89 1 $49.33 1 546.90 1 149.33 

Histo,torial Pro Fomu 
Ywn Ended h e m b r  31, Yean Ended Docamber 31, 

Revenues. Video revenue consists of our basic, expanded basic, premium, pay-per-view and digital cable services, as well as 
equipment rentals. The increase in video revenue from 2003 to 2004 is attributable to subscriber growth in our digital video service 
and rate increases. During 2004, we added approximately 990,000 digital subscribers. The growth in our digital cable subscribers was 
driven by an increase in consumer demand for new digital services and features, such as VOD, DVRs and HDTV programming, and 
enhancements in digital service packages. We expect continued growth in our video revenue. 

21,548 
6,992 
1,223 

The increase in high-speed lnternet revenue from 2003 to 2004 is primarily due to the addition of approximately 1,708,000 high-speed 
lnternet subscriben in 2004. The growth in high-speed lnternet subscribers reflects increased consumer demand for the faster and 
more reliable lnternet service provided over our cable networks. We expect continued growth in our high-speed lnternet revenue. 

2W3 

147.01 

142.20 

The decrease in phone revenue from 2003 to 2004 is primarily a result of our focus on operating efficiencies to drive profitability in the 
phone business rather than focusing on subscriber growth. As a result, during 2004, our phone subscribers decreased by approxi- 
mately 44,000 subscriben. 

2 1,468 
5,284 
1,267 

Monthly average video revenue per video subscriber 
Monthly average high-speed lnternet revenue per high-speed 

Internet subscriber 

The increase in advertising sales revenue from 2003 to 2004 is primarily due to the effects of growth in regionavnational advertising as a 
result of the continued success of our regional interconnects, a stronger local advertising market and an increase in political 
advertising. We expect continued growth in our advertising sales revenue. 

r 
7m4 

$49.87 

$42.41 

2003 

$47.11 

142.08 

Other revenue includes installation revenues, revenue from our regional sports and news networks, guide revenues, commissions 
from electronic retailing, revenue from commercial data services and revenue fmm other service offerings. 

21,548 
6,992 
1,223 

I 

2004 

-9.89 

W.41  

The increase in franchise fees collected from our cable subscribers fmm 2003 to 2004 is primarily attributable to the increase in our 
revenues upon which the fees apply. 

21,540 
5,285 
1,267 

Operating Expenses. Programming expenses represent our single largest operating expense and are fees paid to license program- 
ming from cable networks that we distribute, package and sell to our video subscribers. Programming expenses are impacted by 
changes in programming rates, the number of subscribers and the programming packages offered to  subscribers. In 2004, 
programming costs increased $240 million to $4.149 billion, or 6.1%, from 2003. We anticipate our programming expenses will 
increase in the future primarily as a result of increased costs to purchase programming and as additional programming is provided to 
our subscribes. We anticipate that these increases will be mitigated, to some extent, by additional volume discounts. 

Other operating expenses increased $168 million, or 5.9%, from 2003, primarily driven by increases in personnel associated with 
the growth in our high-speed lnternet and digital cable services. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $295 million from 2003, 
primarily driven by increases in marketing costs and the administrative costs associated with growth in our business. 

2003 to 2002 His to r~ca l  Cornparrsons 

The following discussion of our cable segment operating results first presents a comparison of the 2003 and 2002 periods on a 
historical basis, which only includes the Broadband results subsequent to November 18, 2002. In order to provide additional 
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information relating to our cable segment operating results, we also present a comparison of 2003 actual results to 2002 results on a 
pro forma basis. 

lncrsese 

(Dolkn in mi!liona) 2003 2002 s % 

Video 5 12,096 55,516 S 6,580 1 19.3% 
High-speed Internet 2,255 715 1,540 215.4 
Phone 801 127 674 530.7 
Advertising sales 1,112 474 638 134.6 
Other 620 275 345 125.5 
Franchise fees 608 243 365 150.2 

Revenues 17,492 7.350 10,142 138.0 
Operating expenses 6,762 2,685 4,077 151.8 - .  
Selling, general and administrative expenses 4,380 1,867 2,513 134.6 

O~eratina income before de~reciation and amortization 5 6.350 52.798 5 3.552 126.9% 

Revenues. Video revenues increased $6.580 billion from 2002 to 2003, of which $6.286 billion is attributable to the effects of the 
Broadband acquisition and $294 million relates to changes in rates and subscriber growth in our historical operations, driven 
principally by growth in digital subscribes. During 2003, we added approximately 1,033,000 digital subscribers. 

The increase in high-speed lnternet rsvenue from 2002 to 2003 is primarily due to the effects of the Broadband acquisition and 
growth in high-speed lnternet subscribes. During 2003, we added appmximately 1,692,000 high-speed lnternet subscribers. 

The increases in phone, advertising sales and other revenue from 2002 to 2003 are primarily attributable to the effects of the 
Broadband acquisition. Our historical operations prior to the Broadband acquisition did not contain significant phone revenue. 

The increase in franchise fees collected from our cable subscribers from 2002 to 2003 is primarily attributable to the increase in our 
revenues upon which the fees apply. 

Operatlng Expenses. Programming expenses increased $2.271 billion to $3.909 billion from 2002 to 2003, primarily due to the 
effects of the Broadband acquisition. The increase in other operating expenses from 2002 to 2003 is primarily attributable to the 
effects of the Broadband acquisition, the effects of an increase in labor costs and other volume-related expenses, and, to a lesser 
extent, the effects of high-speed lnternet subscriber growth. 

Selllng, General and Admlnlstrative Expenses. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses from 2002 to 2003 is 
primarily attributable to the effects of the Broadband acquisition. 

2003 to 2002 Pro Forrna Cornpar~sons 

Management uses pm forma data to evaluate performance when significant acquisitions or dispositions occur. Historical data reflects 
results of acquired businesses only after the acquisition dates, while pro forma data enhances comparability of financial information 
between periods by adjusting the data as if the acquisitions (or dispositions) occurred at the beginning of the prior year. Our pro 
forma data is only adjusted for the timing of acquisitions and does not include adjustments for costs related to integration activities, 
cost savings or synergies that have or may be achieved by the combined businesses. In the opinion of management, this information 
is not indicative of what our results would have been had we operated Broadband since January 1,2002, nor is it indicative of our 
future results. The following table presents our cable segment operating results for 2002 on a pro forma basis and a reconciliation to 
historical and pro forma data (dollan in millions): 

2003 to 2002 

Pm Forms Pre~quirition Incraaoe/(Dscmu) 

2003 2002 Broadband AsReportad S % 

Video 51 2.096 S 1 1.460 55,944 $5.5 16 5 636 5.5% 
High-speed Internet 2,255 1,486 77 1 715 769 51.7 

Phone 801 818 691 127 (17) (2.2) 
Advertising sales 1,112 1,036 562 474 76 7.4 
Other 6 M  667 392 2 75 (47) (7.2) 
Franchise fees 608 570 327 243 38 6.8 

Revenues 17,492 16,037 8,687 7,350 1,455 9.1 

Operating expenses 6,762 6,756 4.071 2,685 6 (0.0) 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 4,380 4,812 2,945 1,867 (432) (9.0) 

Operating income before depreciation and amortization S 6,350 5 4.469 51.671 52,798 51.881 42.1 % 
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The following tables present our subscriber and monthly average revenue statistics on a pro forma basis as though acquisitions 
during these years occurred on January 1,2002 (subscribers in thousands). 

Video subscribes 21,468 21,327 141 0.7% 
High-speed Internet subscribers 5,284 3,620 1,664 45.9% 
Phone subscribers 1,267 1,438 (171) (1 1.9%) 

Years Ended 
December 31, 

2003 2002 Incma~/(Decmara) 

Monthly average video revenue per video subscriber $47.15 144.54 S 2.61 5.9% 
Monthly average high-speed Internet revenue per high-speed 

lnternet subscriber 
Monthlv averaae  hone revenue ~ e r    hone subscriber S48.m 554.35 $6.45) (10.0%) 

Revenues. The increase in video revenue from 2002 to 2003 is primarily due to increases in monthly average revenue per video 
subscriber as a result of rate increases in our traditional video service, growth in digital subscribers, and repricing and repackaging of 
the digital and premium channel services in the Broadband systems. During 2003, we added approximately 1,033,000 digital 
subscriben. 

The increase in high-speed lnternet revenue from 2002 to 2003 is primarily due to the addition in 2003 of approximately 1,692,000 
high-speed lnternet subscriben and is also due to the effects of an increase in monthly average revenue per subscriber. 

The decrease in phone revenue from 2002 to 2003 is primarily a result of our focusing on operating efficiencies to drive profitability in 
the phone business, rather than focusing on subscriber growth. As a result, during 2003, our phone subscribes decreased by 
approximately 171,000 subscribers. 

The increase in advertising sales revenue from 2002 to 2003 is primarily due to the effects of growth in regionavnational advertising as 
a result of the continued success of our regional interconnects, offset by reduced growth in a soft local advertising market. 

Other revenue includes revenue from our regional sports programming networks, installation revenues, guide revenues, commissions 
from electronic retailing and reduced revenue from other service offerings. 

The increase in franchise fees collected from our cable subscribers from 2002 to 2003 is primarily attributable to the increase in our 
revenues upon which the fees apply. 

Operatlng Expenses. Programming expenses increased $87 million to $3.909 billion, or 2.3%, in 2003 compared to 2002, 
primarily because we were able to negotiate reductions in programming rates, principally in premium channels, during 2003. 

Other operating expenses decreased $81 million in 2003 from 2002, primarily due to the effects of cost reductions in the 
integration of the Broadband systems. 

Selllng. General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $432 million in 2003 
from 2002, primarily driven by reductions in headcount and elimination of redundancies in 2003. In addition, the 2002 amounts 
include $425 million of acquisition and employee termination related costs recorded by Broadband. 

Content Segment 
2004. 2003 and 2002 Historical Comparisons 

The following table presents our content segment operating results (dollars in millions): 
r ( 2003 2002 

Our content segment consists of the national networks E! Entertainment and Style Network (E! Networks), The Golf Channel, 
Outdoor Life Network, G4 and International Channel Networks. 

Revenues 
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses 

Revenues. Our content segment revenue increased $159 million and $107 million, or 25.3% and 20.5%, for the years 2004 and 
2003, respectively, compared to the previous year. The increases in 2004 and 2003 revenue reflect increases in distribution and 
advertising revenue for all of the networks and the 2004 acquisitions of TechN and lnternational Channel Networks. 

$787 $628 $521 
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Operating, Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses increased 
$108 million and $63 million, or 26.1% and 17.9%, for the yean 2004 and 2003, respectively, compared to the previous year. 
Expenses increased in 2004 and 2003 as a resutt of higher development and marketing expenses for signature events and other 
original programming in all of our networks, as well as to the effects of our acquisitions of TechTV and International Channel 
Networks during 2004. 

Consolldrted Other Income (Expense) Items 
2004, 2003 and 2002 Historical Comparisons 

Interest Expense. The decrease in interest expense for the year 2004 from 2003 is a result of our debt reduction during 2003 and 
2004 and due to the effects of our interest rate risk management program. This decrease was offset somewhat by the effects of 
the write-off of unamortized debt issue costs to interest expense in connection with the refinancing of our previously existing 
revolving credit facilities and by the early redemption of a portion of the Comcast exchangeable notes. The costs during 2004 
associated with the refinancing and the redemption totaled $38 million and $31 million, respectively. The decrease for 2004 from 
2003 was also offset by the effects of our adoption of SFAS No. 150, "Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with 
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity" ("SFAS No. 15OU), on July 1, 2003. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 150, 
interest expense for 2004 and 2003 includes $100 million and $53 million, respectively, of dividends on a subsidiary's preferred 
stock, which were classified as minority interest prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 150. 

The increase in interest expense for 2003 from 2002 is due to our increased amount of debt outstanding in 2003 as a result of the 
Broadband acquisition. 

lnvestment Income (Loss), Net. lnvestment income (loss), net for the years ended December, 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is 
comprised of the following (dollan in millions): 

I 

2001 

Interest and dividend income 1 $160 
Gains (losses) on sales and exchanges of investments, net 
lnvestment impairment charges 
Unrealized gains (losses) on trading securities 
Mark to market adjustments on derivatives related to trading securities 

The investment impairment charges for 2003 and 2002 relate principally to other than temporary declines in our investment in 
AT&T. 

Mark to market adjustments on derivatives and hedged items 

Investment income (loss), net 

We have entered into derivative financial instruments that we account for at fair value and which economically hedge the market 
price fluctuations in the common stock of most (as of December 31,2004) of our investments accounted for as trading securities. 
The differences between the unrealized gains (losses) on trading securities and the mark-temarket adjustments on derivatives 
related to trading securities, as presented in the table above, result from one or more of the following: 

we did not maintain an economic hedge for our entire investment in the security during some portion or for all of the period, 

25 

S 472 

* the security to  which the derivative relates changed due to a corporate reorganization of the issuing company to a security 
with a different volatility rate, 

the issuing company paid a new or an increased dividend to the shareholden of the security, or 

the change in the time value component of the derivative value during the period. 

(353) (16) 

f (84) S (543) 

The mark-temarket adjustments on derivatives and hedged items consist principally of the fair value adjustments related to the 
derivative component of the notes exchangeable into Comcast stock. We are exposed to changes in the fair value of this 
derivative since the underlying shares of Comcast Class A Special common stock that we hold in treasury are carried at our 
historical cost and not adjusted for changes in fair value. As of December 31, 2004, approximately 8.4 million shares of Comcast 
Class A Special common stock collateralize the outstanding Comcast exchangeable notes. 

Equity in Net Losses of Affiliates. The increase in equity in net losses of affiliates from 2003 to 2004 results principally from the 
effects of our additional investments and changes in the net income or loss of our equity method investees. 

Other Income. The increase in other income from 2003 to 2004 is primarily attributable to the $250 million reduction in the 
estimated fair value liability associated with the AT&T securities litigation recorded as par? of the Broadband acquisition and the 
$94 million gain recognized on the sale of our 20% interest in DHC Ventures, LLC (Discovery Health Channel). Refer to Notes 6 
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and 13 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of this settlement and this sale. The increase in other income from 
2002 to 2003 is primarily attributable to lease rental income related to certain assets acquired in the Broadband acquisition. 

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit. The changes in income tax (expense) benefit are primarily the result of the effects of changes in 
our income (Ion) from continuing operations before taxes and minority interest. 

Mlnority Interest. The decrease in minority interest from 2003 to 2004 is attributable to the effects of our adoption of SFAS 
No. 150 on July 1 ,  2003, upon which we now record our subsidiary preferred dividends, previously included within minority 
interest, to interest expense and, to a lesser extent, to increases in the net losses of some of our less than wholly owned 
consolidated subsidiaries. The increase in minority interest from 2002 to 2003 is attributable to increases in the net income of our 
less than wholly-owned consolidated subsidiaries and to dividends recorded to minority interest related to certain subsidiaries 
acquired in the Broadband acquisition prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 150 on July 1 ,  2003. 

Dlscontlnued operatlons. Income from discontinued operations decreased from 2002 to 2003 primarily as a result of the 2003 
period's including the results of QVC through August 31, while the 2002 period includes QVC's results for the full year. As a result 
of the sale of QVC, we recognized a $3.290 billion gain, net of approximately $2.865 billion of related income taxes. 

STOCK O P T I O N  A C C O U N T I N G  

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS No. 123RW), which replaces 
SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" ("SFAS No. 123") and supercedes APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting 
for Stock Issued to Employees." SFAS No. 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee 
stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values, beginning with the fint interim or annual 
period after June 15, 2005, with early adoption encouraged. In addition. SFAS No. 123R will cause unrecognized expense (based 
on the amounts in our pro forma footnote disclosure) related to options vesting after the date of initial adoption to be 
recognized as a charge to results of operations over the remaining vesting period. We are required to adopt SFAS No. 123R in 
our third quarter of 2005, beginning July 1, 2005. Under SFAS No. 123R. we must determine the appropriate fair value model to 
be used for valuing share-based payments, the amortization method for compensation cost and the transition method to be 
used at the date of adoption. The transition alternatives include prospective and retroactive adoption methods. Under the 
retroactive methods, prior periods may be restated either as of the beginning of the year of adoption or for all periods 
presented. The prospective method requires that compensation expense be recorded for all unvested stock options and share 
awards at the beginning of the first quarter of adoption of SFAS No. 123R, while the retroactive methods would record 
compensation expense for all unvested stock options and share awards beginning with the first period restated. We are 
evaluating the requirements of SFAS No. 123R and we expect that the adoption of SFAS No. 123R will have a material impact on 
our consolidated results of operations and earnings per share. We have not determined the method of adoption or the effect of 
adopting SFAS No. 123R. 

LIQUIDITY A N D  CAPITAL RESOURCES 

During 2004, we continued to strengthen our balance sheet through the repayment and refinancing of debt, and improved our 
liquidity through the sales or exchanges of our investments, which are more fully described below. We believe that we will be 
able to meet our current and long-term liquidity and capital requirements, including fixed charges, through our cash flows from 
operating activities, existing cash, cash equivalents and investments; through available borrowings under our existing credit 
facilities; and through our ability to obtain future external financing. 

Operating Actlvitiar 
Net cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations amounted to $5.930 billion for the year ended Decem- 
ber 31, 2004, due principally to our operating income before depreciation and amortization, the effects of interest and income 
tax payments, proceeds from sales or exchanges of trading securities, and changes in operating assets and liabilities. 

During 2004, we made cash payments for interest totaling $1.898 billion. We anticipate that, for the foreseeable future, our cash 
paid for interest will decline modestly as average debt balances decline but will remain significant. During 2004, we made cash 
payments for income taxes totaling $205 million, primarily as a result of state income taxes associated with our net income. 
Offsetting the cash payments were federal income tax refunds received during 2004 of approximately $591 million. We 
anticipate that our income tax payments will increase as our income increases and certain tax audits are settled. 

Also contributing to the increase in our cash flow fmm operating activities was $680 million of proceeds received on the sale or 
exchange of our trading securities, including $547 million received in connection with the Liberty exchange transaction in 
July 2004 and $128 million received in connection with our sale of 3 million shares of Liberty International common stock in 
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December 2004. Although the presentation of these proceeds within cash provided by operating activities is in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, these amounts are not indicative of our recurring operations, but result from sales of 
investments. 

During 2004, the net change in our operating assets and liabilities was $331 million. The changes in operating assets and 
liabilities are primarily a result of $51 5 million in cash payments for liabilities recorded associated with the Broadband acquisition. 

Financing Activities 
Net cash used in financing activities from continuing operations was $2.516 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004, and 
consists principally of our net repayments of debt of $1.293 billion and repurchases of common stock of $1.324 billion. During the 
year ended December 31,2004, our debt repayments and borrowings consisted of the following: 

Repayments 

$867 million under senior and medium-term notes, 

$700 million under revolving credit facilities, 

$609 million of Comcast exchangeable debt and 

$147 million under capital leases and other debt instrurnents. 

Borrowings 

$700 million under revolving credit facilities, 

$320 million, net under our commercial paper program and 

$10 million under other debt instruments. 

We have made, and may, from time to time in the future, make optional repayments on our debt obligations, which may include 
open market repurchases of our outstanding public notes and debentures, depending on various factors, such as market 
conditions. 

Commercial Paper Program. In June 2004, we entered into a commercial paper program to provide a lower-cost borrowing 
source of liquidity to fund our short-term working capital requirements. The program allows for a maximum of $2.25 billion of 
commercial paper to be issued at any one time. Our revolving bank credit facility supports this program. As of December 31, 
2004, amounts outstanding under the program totaled $320 million with a weighted average interest rate of 2.68%. 

Available Borrowings Under Credit Facilities. We have traditionally maintained significant availability under our lines of credit 
to meet our short-term liquidity requirements. In January 2004, we refinanced three of our existing revolving credit facilities with 
a new $4.5 billion, five-year revolving bank credit facility due January 2009. The interest rate for borrowings under this revolver is 
LIBOR plus 0.625% based on our current credit ratings. We have four lines of credit aggregating $4.872 billion and, as of 
December 31,2004, amounts available under our lines of credit totaled $4.062 billion. 

The Cross-Guarantee Structure. We and a number of our wholly-owned subsidiaries that hold substantially all of our cable 
assets have unconditionally guaranteed each other's debt securities and indebtedness for borrowed money, including amounts 
outstanding under the $4.5 billion bank credit facility. As of December 31, 2004, $20.223 billion of our debt was included in the 
cross-guarantee structure. 

Comcast Holdings Corporation, our immediate predecessor and now a subsidiary, is not a guarantor and none of its debt is 
guaranteed under the cross-guarantee structure. As of December 31, 2004, $950 million of our debt was outstanding at Comcast 
Holdings. 

Debt Covenants. We and our cable subsidiaries that have provided guarantees are subject to the covenants and restrictions 
set forth in the indentures governing our public debt securities and in the credit agreement governing our bank credit facilities. 
We and the guarantors are in compliance with the covenants and we believe that neither the covenants nor the restrictions in our 
indentures or loan documents will limit our ability to operate our business or raise additional capital. The two financial covenants 
in our bank credit facility are tested on an ongoing basis and measure our leverage and interest coverage. We have significant 
headroom under these financial covenants. Future compliance with these financial covenants is not dependent on further debt 
reduction or on improved operating results. 

Exchangeable Notes. We have outstanding notes exchangeable into the common stock of Cablevision Class A common stock, 
Micmsoft common stock, Vodafone ADRs and Corncast Class A Special common stock (together, the "Exchangeable Notes"). At 
maturity the &changeable Notes are mandatorily redeemable at our option into (i) a number of shares of common stock or 
ADRs equal to the underlying shares multiplied by an exchange ratio (as defined), or (ii) its cash equivalent. The maturity value of 
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the Exchangeable Notes varies based upon the fair market value of the security to which it is indexed. The Exchangeable Notes 
are collateralized by our investments in Cablevision, Microsoft and Vodafone, respectively. The Corncast exchangeable notes are 
collateralized by our Class A Special common stock held in treasury. We have settled and intend in the future to settle all of the 
Comcast exchangeable notes using cash. 

During 2004 and 2003, we settled an aggregate of $847 million face amount and $638 million face amount, respectively, of our 
obligations relating to our notes exchangeable into Comcast stock by delivering cash to the counterparty upon maturity of the 
instruments, and the equity collar agreements related to the underlying shares expired or were settled. During 2004 and 2003, 
we settled $2.359 billion face amount and $1.213 billion face amount, respectively, of our obligations relating to our Exchangeable 
Notes by delivering the underlying shares of common stock to the counterparty upon maturity of the investments. 

As of December 31, 2004, our debt includes an aggregate of $1.699 billion of Exchangeable Notes, including $1.645 billion 
within current portion of long-term debt. As of December 31, 2004, the securities we hold collateralizing the Exchangeable 
Notes were sufficient to substantially satisfy the debt obligations associated with the outstanding Exchangeable Notes. 

Stock Repurchases. During 2004, under our Board-authorized, $2 billion share repurchase program, we repurchased 46.9 million 
shares of our Class A Special common stock for $1.328 billion. We expect such repurchases to continue from time to time in the 
open market or in private transactions, subject to market conditions. 

Refer to Notes 8 and 10 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our financing activities. 

Invostlng Activities 
Net cash used in investing activities from continuing operations was $4.512 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004, and 
consists primarily of capital expenditures of $3.660 billion, additions to intangible and other noncurrent assets of $628 million 
and the acquisition of TechTV for approximately $300 million. 

Capital Expenditures. Our most significant recurring investing activity has been and is expected to continue to be capital expendi- 
tures. The following table illustrates the capital expenditures we incurred in our cable segment during 2004 and expect to incur in 
2005 (dollan in millions): 

m04 ZOOS 

Deployment of cable moderns, digital converters, and new service offerings 1 52,106 1 $2,300 

The amount of our capital expenditures for 2005 and for subsequent yean will depend on numerous facton, some of which are 
beyond our control, including competition, changes in technology and the timing and rate of deployment of new services. 

uWrading of cable systems 
Recumng capital projects 

Total cable seament cadtal emnditures 

Additions to Intangibles. Additions to intangibles during 2004 primarily relate to our investment in a $250 million long-term 
strategic license agreement with Gemstar, multiple dwelling unit contracts of approximately $1 33 million and other licenses and 
software intangibles of approximately $168 million. 

Investments. Proceeds from sales, settlements and restructurings of investments totaled $228 million during 2004, related to 
the sales of our non-strategic investments, including our 20% interest in DHC Ventures, LLC (Discovery Health Channel) for 
approximately $1 49 million. We consider investments that we determine to be non-strategic, highly-valued, or both to be a 
source of liquidity. We consider our investment in $1.5 billion in Time Warner common-equivalent preferred stock to be an 
anticipated source of liquidity. 

902 
614 

$3.622 

We do not have any significant contractual funding commitments with respect to any of our investments. 

200 
500 

SE OM 

Refer to Notes 6 and 7 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our investments and our intangible 
assets, respectively. 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

We do not have any significant off-balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our 
financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources. 
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C O N T R A C T U A L  O B L I G A T I O N S  

Our unconditional contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004, which consist primarily of our debt obligations, and the 
effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods, are summarized in the following 
table (dollars in millions): 

Payments Due by Period 

Mom than 
Contractual Obl1gatlonr Total Year 1 Yem 2-3 Yean 4-5 5 y w n  

Debt obligations, excluding Exchangeable Notes(') $21,820 $ 1,835 $2.390 $2,844 $14,751 
Exchangeable Notes 1,699 1,645 54 - - 
Capital lease obligations 73 19 38 9 7 
Operating lease obligations 987 190 295 203 299 
Purchase obligationsa 7,214 2,222 1,774 1,159 2,059 
Other long-term liabilities reflected on the balance sheet: 

Acquisition related obligationsa 509 294 172 32 11 
Other long-term obligationsl* 3,693 238 312 140 3,003 

Total $35,995 $ 6.443 $ 5.035 $4.387 $20.130 

Refer to Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our long-term debt. Refer to Note 13 to our consolidated 
financial statements for a discussion of our operating lease and purchase obligations. Refer to Note 5 to our consolidated financial 
statements for a discussion of our acquisition-related obligations. 

~')Excludar intemt payments. 

@Purchase obligations cooaist of agreements to purdrasa goods and services that are enforceable and legally binding oo us and that specify all significant terms. 
including fued or minimum quantities to be purchased, price provisions and timing of the transaction. Our purchase obligations include payments under the 
employment agreements that we, through Camcast Spectator, have with both players and coaches of our professional sporu teams that are guaranteed regardless 
of employes injury w termination. Some of these agreements may be covered by disability insurance if certain conditions am met. Also included am payments 
under license agreements that our programming netwaits have entered into for programs and sporting events that will be available fw telecast subsequent to 
December 31, 2004. Also included are the minimum guaranteed payments under programming contracts that our cable segment enters into for the purchase 
of programming from cable network providers. We have a h  included commitments to purchase cable related equipment. We did not include contracts with 
immaterial future commitments 

" A c q u u i b t e d  obligations consist primwiiy of wsts related to terminating employees, costs relating to exiting contractual obligations, and other assumed contmctual 
o b l g a t h  of the acquirsd entity. 

mOthec longterm oblgationr consist principally of our prepaid forward transactions on equity recurities we hold, subsidiary p r e f e d  sham, defend compensation 
obligations. pension, pan-mtirement and port-employment bend% obligations. and program rights payable under license agreements. 

Affiliation Agreements 
Our content subsidiaries enter into multi-year affiliation agreements with various cable and satellite television system operators 
for carriage of their respective programming. In connection with these affiliation agreements, we, at times, have paid a fee to the 
cable or satellite television operator for the initial or renewal agreement based upon the number of subscribes. During 2005, we 
expect to incur fees of approximately $25 million related to these affiliation agreements, excluding amounts applicable to our 
cable systems. 

INTEREST RATE RISK M A N A G E M E N T  

We are exposed to the market risk of adverse changes in interest rates. In order to manage the cost and volatility relating to our 
interest cost of our outstanding debt, we maintain a mix of fixed and variable rate debt and enter into various interest rate risk 
management derivative transactions pursuant to our policies. 

We monitor our interest rate risk exposures using techniques including market value and sensitivity analyses. We do not hold or 
issue any derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes and are not a party to leveraged instruments. 

We manage the credit risks associated with our derivative financial instruments through the evaluation and monitoring of the 
creditworthiness of the counterparties. Although we may be exposed to losses in the event of nonperformance by the 
counterparties, we do not expect such losses, if any, to be significant. 

These derivative financial instruments, which can include swaps, rate locks, caps and collars, represent an integral part of our 
interest rate risk management program. During 2004, we decreased our interest expense by approximately $66 million through 
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this program. Our derivative financial instruments did not have a significant effect on interest expense for the years ended 
December 31, 2003 and 2002. However, interest rate risk management instruments may have a significant effect on our interest 
expense in the future. 

The table set forth below summarizes the fair values and contract terms of financial instruments subject t o  interest rate risk 
maintained by us as of December 31, 2004 (dollars in millions): 

Fairvalue at 
Decembsr31, 

2005 ZW6 2007 M O B  Total 2aY 2009 Theredtar 

Debt 
Fixed Rate $2,547 $1.690 $725 $1.486 $1.015 514.756 $22,219 525.086 

Average Interest Rate 7.4% 7.4% 8.2% 7.2% 7.3% 7.8% 7.7% 
Variable Rate S 952 S 7 S 61 $ 10 S 343 - S 1,373 S 1,373 

Average Interest Rate 3.8% 3.9% 4.5% 4.5% 5.0% - 4.2% 
Interest Rate Instruments 
Variable to F i  Swaps (notional amounts) S 488 - - - - - S 488 S 8 

Average Pay Rate 7.6% - - - - - 7.6% 
Average Receive Rate 3.5% - - - - - 3.5% 

Fixed to Variable Swaps (notional amounts) - S 400 - $ 6 0 0  $ 7 5 0  $2,150 $3.900 $ 9 
Average Pay Rate - 6.7% - 7.0% 6.8% 5.6% 6.1% 
Average Receive Rate - 6.4% - 6.2% 6.9% 6.0% 6.3% 

The notional amounts of interest rate instruments, as presented in the table above, are used to measure interest to be paid or 
received and do not represent the amount of exposure to credit loss. The estimated fair value approximates the proceeds 
necessary to settle the outstanding contracts. We estimate interest rates on variable debt using the average implied forward 
London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") rates for the year of maturity based on the yield curve in effect at December 31,2004, 
plus the borrowing margin in effect for each credit facility at December 31, 2004. We estimate the floating rates on our swaps 
using the average implied forward LlBOR rates for the year of maturity based on the yield curve in effect at December 31,2004. 

Excluding the effects of interest rate risk management instruments, 5.8% of our total debt as of December 31, 2004, was at 
variable rates, compared to 8.2% at December 31, 2003. 

As a matter of practice, we typically do not structure our financial contracts to include credit ratings-based triggers that could 
affect our liquidity. In the ordinary coune of  business, some of our swaps could be subject to termination provisions if we do not 
maintain investment-grade credit ratings. As of December 31, 2004, the estimated fair value of  the proceeds to  be received 
related to those swaps was immaterial. The amount due or to be received upon termination, if any, would be based upon the fair 
value of those outstanding contracts at that time. 

E Q U I T Y  PRICE RISK M A N A G E M E N T  

We are exposed to the market risk of changes in the equity prices of some of our investments accounted for as trading securities. 
We enter into various derivative transactions pursuant to our policies to manage the volatility relating to these exposures. 

We monitor our equity price risk exposures to ensure that the instruments are matched with the underlying assets or liabilities, 
reduce our risks relating to equity prices, and through market value and sensitivity analyses, maintain a high conelation to  the risk 
inherent in the hedged item. 

We use the following derivative financial instruments, which we account for at fair value, to limit our exposure to and benefits 
from price fluctuations in the common stock of some of our investments accounted for as trading securities: 

Cashless collar agreements ("equity collars"); 

Prepaid forward sales agreements ("prepaid forward sales"); 

Indexed debt instruments ('exchangeable notes"). 

Except as described in Results of  Continuing Operations-Investment Income (Loss), Net on page 25, the changes in the fair 
value of our investments accounted for as trading securities were substantially offset by the changes in the fair values of the 
equity collars and the derivative components of the exchangeable notes and the prepaid forward sales. 

Refer to Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our accounting policies with respect t o  derivative financial 
instruments and to Notes 6 and 8 to our consolidated financial statements for discussions of our derivative financial instruments. 
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A C C U M U L A T E D  O T H E R  C O M P R E H E N S I V E  I N C O M E  (LOSS)  

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) primarily are unrealized losses on our rate locks, offset by 
unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities. Changes to these components account for the change in accumulated 
other comprehensive income (loss) from December 31,2003, to December 31,2004. Refer to Notes 6 and 8 to our consolidated 
financial statements for more information about these components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). 

We believe that our operations are not materially affected by inflation. 
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Report of Management 

Management's Report on Financial Statements 
Our management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of information in our consolidated financial 
statements, including estimates and judgments. The consolidated financial statements presented in this report have been 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our management believes 
the consolidated financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present, in all material respects, 
our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows as of and for the periods presented in this report. The consolidated 
financial statements have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in 
their report, which is included herein. 

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over financial reporting. 
Our system of internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and dispositions 
of our assets; 

provide reasonable assurance that our transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of our financial state- 
ments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that our receipts and 
expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and our directors; and 

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, a system of internal control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance and 
may not prevent or detect misstatements. Further, because of changes in conditions, effectiveness of internal controls over financial 
reporting may vary over time. Our system contains self monitoring mechanisms, and actions are taken to correct deficiencies as they 
are identified. 

Our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the system of internal control over financial reporting based 
on the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our management concluded that our system of internal control over financial 
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2004. Our management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over 
financial reporting has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in 
their report which is included herein. 

Audit Committee Oversight 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which is comprised solely of independent directors, has oversight responsibility 
for our financial reporting process and the audits of our consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial 
reporting. The Audit Committee meets regularly with management and with our internal auditors and independent registered 
public accounting firm (collectively, the "auditors") to review matters related to the quality and integrity of our financial reporting, 
internal control over financial reporting (including compliance matters related to our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct), and 
the nature, extent, and results of internal and external audits. Our auditors have full and free access and report directly to the 
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee recommended, and the Board of Directors approved, that the audited consolidated 
financial statements presented in this report be included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

The officers signing below have reviewed and agree with the statements contained in this management report. 

Brian L. Roberts 
Chairman and CEO 

John R. Alchin Lawrence S. Smith 
Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President 
Co-Chief Financial Officer and Co-Chief Financial Officer 
Treasurer 

Lawrence J. Salva 
Senior Vice President, 
Chief Accounting Officer and 
Controller 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Comcast Corporation 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Corncast Corporation and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of 
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholden' equity and cash flows for 
each of the three yean in the period ended December 31, 2004. We also have audited management's assessment, included 
under the caption Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that the Company maintained effective 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is 
responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assess- 
ment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements, an opinion on management's assessment, and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control 
over financial reporting based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting drenight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all 
material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's 
principal executive and principal financial offices, or pesons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board 
of directon, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely 
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to  above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Comcast Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and 
their cash flows for each of the three yean in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, management's assessment that the Company 
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, 
based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiza- 
tions of the Treadway Commission. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the criteria established in lnternal Control- 
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 

Doloitto a Touch UP 
Philadelphia. Pennsylvania 
February 21, 2005 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 

L4mount.i in millions, except share date) 
Docomher 31. 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1 32 and $146 
Other current assets 

Total current assets 

INVESTMENTS 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated depreciation of $9,416 and $6,563 
FRANCHISE RIGHTS 

GOODWILL 
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net of accumulated amortization of $3,452 and $2,182 
OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS. net 

LIABILITIES A N D  STOCKHOLDtRS'  EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses related to trade creditors 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 
Current portion of long-term debt 

Total current liabilities 

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current portion 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 
OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 

MINORITY INTEREST 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 13) 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Preferred stock-authorized 20,000,000 shares; issued, zero 
Class A common stock, 90.01 par value-authorized, 7,500,000,000 shares; 

issued, 1,603,320,864 and 1,601,161,057; outstanding, 1,359,680,364 and 1,357,520,557 
Class A Special common stock, $0.01 par value-authorized, 7,500,000,000 shares; 

issued 890,234,413 and 931,732,876; outstanding, 842,944,570 and 884,443,033 
Class B common stock, 90.01 par value-authorized, 75,000,000 shares; 

issued and outstanding, 9,444,375 
Additional capital 
Retained earnings 
Treasury stock, 243,640,500 Class A common shares and 47,289,843 Class A Special 

common shares 
Accumulated other comorehensive loss 

Total stockholders' equity 

Sea note, to consolidated financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statement of Operations 

IDoll~n in miliions, except per share data) 
Y m u  Endd  Duembor 31. 

REVENUES 

COSTS AND EXPENSES 

Operating (excluding depreciation) 
Selling, general and administrative 
Depreciation 
Amortization 

OPERATING INCOME 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 

Interest expense 
Investment income (loss), net 
Equity in net losses of affiliates 
Other income 

- 

INCOME (LOSS] FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND 
MlNORllY INTEREST 

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) BENEFIT - 
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST 

MINORITY INTEREST 

INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 

INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, net of tax 
GAIN ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, net of tax 

NET INCOME (LOSS) 

BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) FOR COMMON STOCKHOLDERS PER COMMON SHARE 

lncome (loss) from continuing operations 
lncome from discontinued operations 
Gain on discontinued operations 

-- 

Net income (loss) 

DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) FOR COMMON STOCKHOLDERS PER COMMON SHARE 

lncome (loss) from continuing operations 
lncome from discontinued operations 
Gain on discontinued operations 

Net income (loss) 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

COMCAST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 3 I  

3LL 



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

(Dollam in million J 
Year Ended Docwnkr 31. 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income (loss) 
Income from discontinued operations 
Gain on discontinued operations 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) from continuing operations to 

net cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations: 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Non-cash interest (income) expense, net 
Equity in net losses of affiliates 
Losses (gains) on investments and other (income) expense, net 
Minority interest 
Deferred income taxes 
Proceeds from sales of trading securities 
Current tax associated with sale of discontinued operation 

Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions 
and divestitures: 

Change in accounts receivable, net 
Change in accounts payable and accrued expenses related to trade creditors 
Change in other operating assets and liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from bornwings 
Retirements and repayments of debt 
Proceeds from settlement of interest rate exchange agreements 
Issuances of common stock and sales of put options on common stock 
Repurchases of common stock and stock options held by non-employees 
D e f e d  financing costs 
Other financina activities 

Net cash used in financing activities from continuing operations 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Capital expenditures 
Proceeds from sales, settlements and restructuring of investments 
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 
Additions to intangible and other noncurrent assets 
Purchases of short-term investments, net 
Proceeds from sales of discontinued operations and assets held for sale 
Capital contributions to and purchases of investments 
Proceeds from settlement of contract of acquired company 
Other investina activities 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities from continuing operations 

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. beainnina of vear 

CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of vear 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity 

Common Stock 

Class A Additional Rained St& Gain8 Tmdstia, 
(Dollan in million# Clau A Special Clau B Capital Earnings At Cost ( L o s ~ s l  Adjumentr Tot.! 

BALANCE, JANUARY 1,2002 I $9 1 512,688 $1,632 S - S 166 S(22) 514,473 
Comprehensive loss: 

Net loss 
Unrealized losses on marketable securities, 

net of deferred taxes of $1 65 
Reclassification adjustments for losses 

included in net loss, net of deferred 
taxes of $92 

Unrealized losses on effective portion of 
cash flow hedges, net of deferred taxes of $79 

Cumulative translation adjustments 1 
Total comprehensive loss (557) 

Acquisitions 16 31,870 (7,517) 24,369 
Stock compensation plans 52 (18) 34 
Employee stock purchase plan 10 10 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2002 16 9 - 44,620 1,340 (7,517) (1 18) (21) 38,329 
Comprehensive income: 

Net income 
Unrealized losses on marketable securities, 

net of deferred taxes of $1 2 
Reclassification adjustments for losses included 

in net income, net of deferred taxes of $1 5 
Cumulative translation adjustments (7) 

Total comprehensive income 
Stock compensation plans 
Retirement of common stock 
Employee stock purchase plan 19 19 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31. 2003 16 9 - 44,742 4,552 (7,517) (112) (28) 41,662 
Comprehensive income: 

Net income 970 
Reclassification adjustments for losses included 

in net income, net of deferred taxes 
Cumulative translation adjustments 20 

Total comprehensive income 
Stock compensation plans 
Retirement of common stock 
Em~lovee stock purchase plan 28 28 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2004 $16 $9 1 $44,142 $4.891 S(7,517) S(111) S (8 )  $41,422 

See not= to wnwldated financial statements 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(Yean Ended December 31,2004,2003 and 20021 

I .  ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS 

We are a Pennsylvania corporation and were incorporated in December 2001. Through our predecessors, we have developed, 
managed and operated broadband cable networks since 1963. On November 18, 2002, we, our immediate predecessor 
Comcast Holdings Corporation ("Comcast Holdings") and AT&T completed a transaction that resulted in Comcast Holdings' 
acquisition of AT&T Broadband (the "Broadband acquisition"). Upon completion of  the Broadband acquisition, Comcast 
Holdings and Broadband are our wholly owned subsidiaries. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
include the results of Comcast Holdings for all periods presented and the results of Broadband from the date of the Broadband 
acquisition (see Note 5). 

Our cable segment is principally involved in the development, management and operation of broadband communications 
networks in the United States. Our consolidated cable operations served approximately 21.5 million subscribes as of Decem- 
ber 31, 2004. Our regional sports and news networks Comcast SportsNet ("CSN"), Comcast SportsNet Mid-Atlantic ("CSN 
Mid-Atlantic"), Comcast SportsNet Chicago ("CSN Chicago"), Comcast SportsNet West ("CSN West'), Cable Sports Southeast 
("CSS"), and CNB-The Comcast Network ("CNB") are included in our cable segment because they derive a substantial portion 
of their revenues from our cable operations and are managed by cable segment management. 

We conduct the national networks of our content segment through our consolidated subsidiaries El Entertainment Television 
("El'), Style Network, The Golf Channel ("TGC"), Outdoor Life Network ("OLN"), G4 and International Channel Networks. 

Our other businesses consist principally of Comcast-Spectacor, our group of businesses that perform live sporting events and 
own or manage facilities for sporting events, concerts, and other special events, and our corporate activities. 

On September 17, 2003, we sold our approximate 57% interest in QVC, Inc., which markets a wide variety of products directly to 
consumers primarily on merchandise-focused television programs. Accordingly, we present QVC as a discontinued operation 
pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of 
Long-Lived Assets" (see Note 5). 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and all entities that we directly or indirectly control. We have eliminated 
all significant intercompany accounts and transactions among consolidated entities. 

Variable Interest Entitles 
We account for our interests in variable interest entities ("VIES") in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board 
("FASB") Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities" ("FIN a"), as amended by FIN 46R. We consolidate 
all VIES for which we are the primary beneficiary and for which the entities do not effectively disperse risks among parties 
involved. We do not consolidate VIES that effectively disperse risks unless we hold an interest or combination of interests that 
effectively recombines risks that were previously dispersed. We adopted the initial recognition and measurement provisions o f  
FIN 46 effective January 1,2002, and the provisions of FIN 46R effective March 31,2004. The adoption of FIN 46 and FIN 46R did 
not have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations. 

Our Use of Estimates 
We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used when accounting for various items, such as allowances for doubtful 
accounts, investments and derivative financial instruments, depreciation and amortization, asset impairment, non-monetary 
transactions, certain acquisition-related liabilities, programming-related liabilities, pensions and other postretirement benefits, 
income taxes, and legal contingencies. 

Fair Values 
We have determined the estimated fair value amounts presented in these consolidated financial statements using available 
market information and appropriate methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to 
develop the estimates of fair value. The estimates presented in these consolidated financial statements are not necessarily 
indicative of the amounts that we could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. We based these fair value estimates 
on pertinent information available to  us as of December 31, 2004 and 2003. We have not comprehensively updated these fair 
value estimates for the purposes of these consolidated financial statements since those dates. 

Cash Equivalents 
Cash equivalents consist principally of commercial paper, money market funds, U.S. government obligations and certificates of 
deposit with maturities of less than three months when purchased. The carrying amounts of our cash equivalents approximate 
their fair values. 

Investment# 
Investments in entities in which we have the ability to  exercise significant influence over the operating and financial policies of 
the investee are accounted for under the equity method. Equity method investments are recorded at original cost and adjusted 
t o  recognize our proportionate share of the investees' net income or losses after the date of investment, amortization of basis 
differences, additional contributions made and dividends received, and impairment charges resulting from adjustments to net 
realizable value. We generally record our proportionate share of our investees' net income or loss one quarter in arrears given 
the timing of the receipt of such information. 

Changes in our proportionate share of the underlying equity of a consolidated subsidiary or equity method investee that result 
from the issuance of additional securities by such subsidiary or investee are recognized as gains or losses in our consolidated 
statement of operations unless gain realization is not assured in the circumstances. Gains for which realization is not assured are 
credited directly to additional capital. 

Unrestricted publicly traded investments are classified as available for sale or trading securities and are recorded at their fair 
value. Unrealized gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value between measurement dates for available for sale securities 
are recorded as a component of other comprehensive income (loss), except for declines in value that we consider to be other 
than temporary. Unrealized gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value between measurement dates for trading securities 
are recorded as a component of investment income (loss), net. We recognize realized gains and losses using the specific 
identification method. Cash flows from all trading securities are classified as cash flows from operating activities as required by 
SFAS No. 95, "Statement of Cash Flows," as amended, while cash flows from all other investment securities are classified as cash 
flows from investing activities in our statement of cash flows. 

We review our investment portfolio each reporting period to determine whether a decline in the market value is considered to  
be other than temporary. Investments deemed to have experienced an other than temporary decline below their cost basis are 
reduced to  their current fair market value. The impairment is charged to earnings and a new cost basis for the investment is 
established. 

Restricted publicly traded investments and investments in privately held companies are stated at cost, adjusted for any known 
decrease in value (see Note 6). 

Property and Equipment 
Depreciation is generally recorded using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives. The significant components of 

and equipment are as follows (dollars in millions): 

Buildings and building improvements 
Land 

UssfulLife I mo4 

2-40 years 
N/A 

20(13 

Transmission and distribution plant 2-15 years 1 95,645 1 $22.609 

We capitalize improvements that extend asset lives and expense other repairs and maintenance charges as incurred. The cost 
and related accumulated depreciation applicable to assets sold or retired are removed from the accounts and, unless they are 
presented separately, the gain or loss on disposition is recognized as a component of depreciation expense. 

Other 3- 12 years 

Property and equipment, at cost 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Property and equipment, net 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

We capitalize the costs associated with the construction of cable transmission and distribution facilities and new cable service 
installations. Costs include all direct labor and materials, as well as various indirect costs. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 
Certain of our franchise agreements and leases contain provisions requiring us to restore facilities or remove equipment in the 
event that the franchise or lease agreement is not renewed. We expect to continually renew our franchise agreements and have 
concluded that the related franchise right is an indefinite-lived intangible asset. Accordingly, the possibility is remote that we 
would be required to  incur significant restoration or removal costs in the foreseeable future. SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset 
Retirement Obligations," requires that a liability be recognized for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is 
incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. We would record an estimated liability in the unlikely event a 
franchise agreement containing such a provision were no longer expected to be renewed. We also expect to  renew many of our 
lease agreements related to the continued operation of our cable business in the franchise areas. For our lease agreements, the 
liabilities related to  the removal provisions, if any, are either not estimable or are not material. 

Intangiblr Assets 
Cable franchise rights represent the value attributed to agreements with local authorities that allow access to homes in cable 
service areas acquired in connection with business combinations. We do not amortize cable franchise rights because we have 
determined that they have an indefinite life. We reassess this determination periodically for each franchise based on the factors 
included in SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" ("SFAS No. 142"). Costs we incur in negotiating and renewing 
cable franchise agreements are included in other intangible assets and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
franchise renewal period, generally 10 years. 

Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. We 
test our goodwill and intangible assets that are determined to have an indefinite life for impairment at least annually. 

Other intangible assets consist principally of franchise related customer relationships acquired in business combinations 
subsequent to  the adoption of SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations" ("SFAS No. 141n), on July 1, 2001, cable and satellite 
television distribution rights, cable franchise renewal costs, contractual operating rights, computer software, programming costs 
and rights, patents and technology rights, and non-competition agreements. We record these costs as assets and amortize them 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the related agreements or estimated useful life, which generally range from 2 to  20 years. 

Our content subsidiaries enter into multi-year affiliation agreements with various cable and satellite television system operators 
for carriage of their respective programming. We capitalize cable or satellite television distribution rights and amortize them on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the related distribution agreements of 4 to 11 years. We classify the amortization of 
distribution fees paid by our content subsidiaries pursuant to Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") 01-09, 'Accounting for 
Consideration Given to a Customer (including a reseller of the Vendors Products)." Under EITF 01-09, the amortization of such 
fees is classified as a reduction of revenue unless the content subsidiary receives, or will receive, an identifiable benefit from the 
cable or satellite system operator separate from the distribution fee, in which case we recognize the fair value of the identified 
benefit as an operating expense in the period in which it is received. 

Direct development costs associated with internal-use software are capitalized, including external direct costs of material and 
services, and payroll costs for employees devoting time to the software projects. Such costs are included within other assets and 
are amortized over a period not to exceed 5 years beginning when the asset is substantially ready for use. Costs incurred during 
the preliminary project stage, as well as maintenance and training costs, are expensed as incurred. Initial operating-system 
software costs are capitalized and amortized over the life of the associated hardware. 

Valuation of Long-Lived and Indefinitr-Lived Assets 
In accordance with SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," we periodically evaluate 
the recoverability and estimated lives of our long-lived assets, including property and equipment and intangible assets subject 
to amortization, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable or the 
useful life has changed. Our evaluations include analyses based on the cash flows generated by the underlying assets, 
profitability information, including estimated future operating results, trends or other determinants of fair value. If the total of the 
expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for the difference 
between the fair value and the carrying value of the asset. Unless presented separately, the loss is included as a component of 
either depreciation expense or amortization expense, as appropriate. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

We evaluate the recoverability of our goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets annually or more frequently whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired. We perform the impairment assessment of our goodwill 
one level below the business segment level, except for our cable business. In our cable business, components one level below the 
segment level are not separate reporting units and also have similar economic characteristics that allow them t o b e  
aggregated into one reporting unit at the cable segment level. 

We estimate the fair value of our cable franchise rights primarily based on multiples of operating income before depreciation 
and amortization generated by the underlying assets, discounted cash flow analyses, analyses of current market transactions and 
profitability information, including estimated future operating results, trends or other determinants of fair value. If the value of 
our cable franchise rights determined by these evaluations is less than its carrying amount, an impairment charge would be 
recognized for the difference between the estimated fair value and the carrying value of the assets. 

Upon adoption of SFAS No. 142 in 2002, we performed the impairment assessment of our cable franchise rights at the cable 
segment level based on our analysis of the facton outlined in EI'TF 02-07, "Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment of 
Indefinitelived Intangible Assets." Effective in the first quarter of 2004, we changed the unit of accounting used for testing 
impairment to geographic regions and performed impairment testing on our cable franchise rights. We did not record any 
impairment charge in connection with the change in impairment testing. 

Foreign Currency Translation 
We translate assets and liabilities of our foreign subsidiaries, where the functional currency is the local currency, into US dollars at 
the December 31 exchange rate and record the related translation adjustments as a component of other comprehensive income 
(loss). We translate revenues and expenses using average exchange rates prevailing during the year. Foreign currency transac- 
tion gains and losses are included in other income. 

Revenue Recognition 
We recognize video, high-speed Internet, and phone revenues as service is provided. We manage credit risk by screening 
applicants for potential risk through the use of credit bureau data. If a customer's account is delinquent, various measures are 
used to collect outstanding amounts, up to and including termination of the customefs cable service. We recognize advertising 
sales revenue at estimated realizable values when the advertising is aired, Installation revenues obtained from the connection of 
subscribers to our broadband communications network are less than related direct selling costs. Therefore, such revenues are 
recognized as connections are completed. Revenues derived from other sources are recognized when services are provided or 
events occur. Under the terms of our franchise agreements, we are generally required to pay up to 5% of our gross revenues 
derived from providing cable services to the local franchising authority. We normally pass these fees through to our cable 
subscribers. We classify fees collected from cable subscribers as a component of revenues pursuant to ElTF 01-14, "Income 
Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for 'Out-of-Pocket' Expenses Incurred." 

Our content businesses recognize affiliate fees from cable and satellite television system operators as programming is provided. 
Advertising revenue is recognized in the period in which commercial announcements or programs are telecast in accordance 
with the broadcast calendar. In some instances, our content businesses guarantee viewer ratings for their programming. 
Revenue is deferred to the extent of an estimated shortfall in the ratings. Such shortfalls are primarily settled by providing 
additional advertising time, at which point the revenue is recognized. 

Programming Costa 
Our cable subsidiaries have received or may receive incentives from programming networks for carriage of their programming. 
We reflect the deferred portion of these fees within noncurrent liabilities and recognize the fees as a reduction of programming 
costs (which are included in operating expenses) over the term of the programming contract. 

Stock-Based Compensation 
We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with Accounting Principles Board ("APE") Opinion No. 25, "Account- 
ing for Stock Issued to Employees" ("APE No. 25"), and related interpretations, as permitted by SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for 
Stock-Based Compensation," as amended. Compensation expense for stock options is measured as the excess, if any, of the 
quoted market price of our stock at the date of the grant over the amount an optionee must pay to acquire the stock. We record 
compensation expense for restricted stock awards based on the quoted market price of our stock at the date of h e  grant and 
the vesting period. We record compensation expense for stock appreciation rights based on the changes in quoted market 
prices of our stock or other determinants of fair value (see Note 10). 
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The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share if we had applied the fair value 
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based compensation. Total stock-based compensation expense was deter- 
mined under the fair value method for all awards using the accelerated recognition method as permitted under SFAS NO. 123 
(dollars in millions, except per share data): 

Add: Stock-based combensation expense included in net income (loss), as reported above 
Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value-based method 

for all awards relating to continuing operations, net of related tax effects 
Deduct Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value-based method 

2W3 2002 

53.240 S (274) 

Yaw Ended Duambu 31, 

Net income (loss). as re~orted 

As reported 
Pro forma 

Diluted earnings (loss) from continuing operations for common stockholden 
per common share: 
As reported 
Pro forma 

Basic earnings (loss) for common stockholden per common share: 
As reported 

s 970 

for all awards relating to-discontinued operations, net of related tax effects 

Pro forma, net income (loss) 

Basic earnings (loss) from continuing operations for common stockholders 
per common share: 
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- 
S 791 

Pro forma 
Diluted earnings (loss) for common stockholden per common sham: 

As reported 
Pro f o n a  

112) (19) 

$3,078 S (-1 

$0.35 

50.43 
54.35 
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On Decamber 23,2004, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors approved the acceleration of vesting of all unvested 
options granted prior to January 1,2003, to purchase shares of our Class A Special common stock having an exercise price of $34 or 
greater and held by current employees. Options with respect to approximately 15.6 million shares of our Class A Special common stock 
were subject to this acceleration. Thisacceleration was effective as of December 31,2004, except for those holders of incentive stock 
options ("ISOs"), who were given the opportunity to decline the acceleration of an option if such acceleration would have the effect of 
changing the status of the option for federal income tax purposes from an IS0 to a non-qualified stock option. Because these options 
had exercise prices in excess of current market values (are "underwater") and were not fully achieving their original objectives of 
incentive compensation and employee retention, the acceleration may have a positive effect on employee morale, retention and 
perception of option value. The acceleration also takes into account the fact that in December 2004, we completed the repurchase of 
stock options held by certain non-employees for cash (including underwater options) under a stock option liquidity program (see 
Note 101, and that no such offer (nor any other "solution" for underwater options) was made to current employees. The effect of the 
acceleration of approximately $39 million, net of tax, is dected in ow 2004 pro forma amounts above. This acceleration eliminates the 
future compensation expense we would otherwise recognize in our statement of operations with respect to these options once FASB 
Statement No. 123R, "Share-Based Payment," ("SFAS No. 123R") becomes effective in 2005 (see Note 3). 

The weighted-average fair value at date of grant of a Class A common stock option granted under our option plans during 2004,2003 
and 2002 was $1 1.44, $9.81 and $9.81, mpectively. The wighted-average fair value at date of grant of a Class A Special common stock 
option granted under our option plans during 2002 was $13.72. The fair value of each option granted during 2004,2003 and 2002 was 
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions: 

Dividend yield 
Expected volatility 
Risk-free interest rate 
Expected option life (in years) 
Forfeiture rate 

The pro forma effect on net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share for the years ended December 31,2004,2003 and 2002 by 
applying SFAS No. 123 may not be indicative of the pro forma effect on net income or loss in future years since SFAS No. 123 doer not 
take into consideration additional awards that may be granted in future years on a much larger employee base. 

Z O O l -  
Clu,  A 

Common 
St& 

0% 
28.6% 

3.5% 
7.0 
3.0% 

As of December 31,2004, there was $234 million of total unrecognized, p t a x  compensation cost related to non-vested stock options. 
This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately two years. Upon adoption of FAS 123R 
effective July 1, 2005, such cost will be recognized directly in our consolidated statement of operations. 

2003 2002 

Claw A C1.n A Clam A Special 
Common Common C- 

Stock Stock S t d  

0% 0% 0% 
29.3% 29.2% 29.6% 
3.2% 4.0% 4.9% 
5.9 7.0 7.0 
3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 

Portrotiromont and Portomploymont Bonofits 
We charge to operations the estimated costs of retiree benefits and benefits for former or inactive employees, after employment but 
before retirement, during the years the employees provide sewices (see Note 9). 

Incomo Taxos 
We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the financial =porting basis and the tax basis of our 
assets and liabilities and the expected benefits of utilizing net operating loss canyforwards. The impact on deferred taxes of changes in 
tax rates and laws, if any, applied to the years during which temporary differences are expected to be settled, are reflected in the 
consolidated financial statements in the period of enactment (see Note 11). 

We account for income tax uncertainties that arise in connection with business combinations and those that are associated with entities 
acquired in business combinations in accordance with ElTF 93-7, "Uncertainties Related to Income Taxes in a Purchase Business 
Combination." Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded at the date of a business combination based on our best estimate of the 
ultimate tax basis that will be accepted by the various taxing authorities. Liabilities for contingencies associated with prior tax returns 
filed by the acquired entity are recorded based on our best estimate of the ultimate settlement that will be accepted by the various 
taxing authorities. Estimated interest expense on these liabilities subsequent to the acquisition is reflected in our consolidated tax 
provision. We adjust these deferred tax accounts and liabilities periodically to reflect revised estimated tax bases and any estimated 
settlements with the various taxing authorities. The effect of these adjustments is generally applied to goodwill. 
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Dorivativa Financial Inrtrumonts 
We use derivative financial instruments for a number of purposes. We manage our exposure to fluctuations in interest rates by entering 
into interest rate exchange agreements ("swaps"), interest rate lock agreements ("rate locks"), interest rate cap agreements ("caps") and 
interest rate collar agreements ('collars"). We manage the cost of our share repurchases through the sale of equity put option contracts 
("Corncast put options") and the purchase of capped-call option contracts. We manage our exposure to fluctuations in the value of 
some of our investments by entering into equity collar agreements ("equity collars") and equity put option agreements ('equity put 
options"). We are also party to equity warrant agreements ("equity warrants"). We have issued indexed debt instruments ("Exchange- 
able Notes" and "ZONES") and entered into prepaid forward sale agreements ("prepaid forward sales") whose value, in part, is derived 
from the market value of certain publicly traded common stock, and we have also sold call options on some of our investments in equity 
securities in order to monetize a portion of those investments. Equity hedges are used to manage exposure to changes in equity prices 
associated with stock appreciation rights of some of Broadband's previously affiliated companies. These equity hedges are recorded at 
fair value based on market quotes. 

For delivative instruments designated and effective as fair value hedges, such as our fixed to variable swaps, changes in the fair value of 
the derivative instrument are substantially offset in the consolidated statement of operations by changes in the fair value of the hedged 
item. For derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges, such as our variable to fixed swaps and rate locks, the effective portion 
of any hedge is reported in other comprehensive income (loss) until it is recognized in earnings during the same period in which the 
hedged item affects eamings. The ineffeaive portion of all hedges is recognized in current earnings each period. Changes in the fair 
value of derivative instruments that are not designated as a hedge are recorded each period in current earnings. 

When a fair value hedge is terminated, sold, exercised or has expired, the adjustment in the carrying amount of the fair value hedged 
item is defend and recognized in earnings when the hedged item is recognized in earnings. When a hedged item is settled or sold, the 
adjustment in the carrying amount of the hedged item is recognized in earnings. When hedged variable rate debt is settled, the 
previously deferred effective portion of the hedge is written off similar to debt extinguishment costs. 

Equity warrants and equity collars are adjusted to estimated fair value on a current basis with the result included in investment income 
(loss), net in our consolidated statement of operations. 

Derivative instruments embedded in other contra&, such as our Exchangeable Notes, ZONES and prepaid forward sales, are 
separated into their host and derivative financial instrument components. The derivative component is recorded at its estimated fair 
value in our consolidated balance sheet with changes in estimated fair value recorded in investment income (loss), net in our 
consolidated statement of operations. 

All derivative transactions must comply with our Board-authorized derivatives policy. We do not hold or issue any derivative financial 
instruments for speculative or trading purposes and are not a party to leveraged instruments (see Note 8). We manage the credit risks 
associated with our derivative financial instruments through the evaluation and monitoring of the wditworthiiess of the counterparties. 
Although we may be exposed to losses in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties, we do not expect such losses, if any, to 
be significant. 

We periodically examine those instruments we use to hedge exposure to interest rate and equity price risks to ensure that the 
instruments are matched with underlying assets or liabilities, reduce our risks relating to interest rates or equity prices and, through 
market value and sensitivity analysis, maintain a high correlation to the risk inherent in the hedged item. For those instruments that do 
not meet the above criteria, variations in their fair value are reflected on a current basis in our consolidated statement of operations. 

Sacuritior Landing Transactions 
We may enter into securities lending transactions pursuant to which we require the borrower to provide cash collateral equal to the 
value of the loaned securities, as adjusted for any changes in the value of the underlying loaned securities. Loaned securities for which 
we maintain effective control are included in investments in our consolidated balance sheet. 

Roclarrifiutionr 
Reclassifications have been made to the prior years' consolidated financial statements to conform to those classifications used in 2004. 
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3. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

ElTF 03-1 6 
In March 2004, the ElTF reached a consensus regarding Issue No. 03-16, "Accounting for Investments in Limited Liability Companies" 
("EITF 03-16"). ElTF 03-16 requires investments in limited liability companies ("LLCs") that have separate ownenhip accounts for each 
investor to be accounted for similar to a limited partnership investment under Statement of Position No. 78-9, "Accounting for 
Investments in Real Estate Ventures." Investors are required to apply the equity method of accounting to their investments at a much 
lower ownenhip threshold than the 20% threshold applied under APE No. 18, "The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in 
Common Stock" We adopted ElTF 03-16 on July 1,2004. The adoption of ElTF 03-16 did not have a material impact on our financial 
condition or results of operations. 

ElTF 04-1 
In September 2004, the ElTF reached a consensus regarding lssue No. 04-1, "Accounting for Preexisting Relationships Between the 
Parties to a Business Combination" ("EITF 04-1 "). ElTF 04-1 requires an acquirer in a business combination to evaluate any preexisting 
relationship with the acquiree to determine if the business combination in effect contains a settlement of the preexisting relationship. A 
business combination between parties with a preexisting relationship should be viewed as a multiple element transaction. EITF 04-1 is 
effective for business combinations after October 13,2004, but requires goodwill resulting from prior business combinations involving 
parties with a preexisting relationship to be tested for impairment by applying the guidance in the consensus. We will apply ElTF 04-1 to 
acquisitions subsequent to the effective date and in our future goodwill impairment testing. 

SFAS No. l23R 
In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS No. 123RW), which replaces SFAS 
No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" ("SFAS No. 123") and supercedes APE Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock 
Issued to Employees." SFAS No. 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to 
be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values, beginning with the first interim or annual period after June 15,2005, 
with early adoption encouraged. In addition, SFAS No. 123R will cause unrecognized expense (based on the amounts in our pro forma 
footnote disclosure) related to options vesting after the date of initial adoption to be recognized as a charge to results of operations 
over the remaining vesting period. We are required to adopt SFAS No. 123R in our third quarter of 2005, beginning July 1,2005. Under 
SFAS No. 123R, we must determine the appropriate fair value model to be used for valuing share-based payments, the amortization 
method for compensation cost and the transition method to be used at the date of adoption. The transition alternatives include 
prospective and retroactive adoption methods. Under the retroactive methods, prior periods may be restated either as of the beginning 
of the year of adoption or for all periods presented. The prospective method requires that compensation expense be recorded for all 
unvested stock options and share awards at the beginning of the fist quarter of adoption of SFAS No. 123R, while the retroaaive 
methods would record compensation expense for all unvested stock options and share awards beginning with the first period restated. 
We are evaluating the requirements of SFAS No. 123R and we expect that the adoption of SFAS No. 123R will have a material impact on 
our consolidated results of operations and earnings per share. We have not determined the method of adoption or the effect of 
adopting SFAS No. 123R. 

4. E A R N I N G S  PER S H A R E  

Earnings (loss) per common share ("EPS") is computed by dividing net income (loss) for common stockholden by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during the period on a basic and diluted basis. 

Our potentially dilutive securities include potential common shares related to our stock options, restricted stock, and Comcast 
exchangeable notes (see Note 8). Diluted earnings for common stockholden per common share ("Diluted EPS") considen the impact 
of potentially dilutive securities except in periods in which there is a loss because the inclusion of the potential common shares would 
have an antidilutive effect Diluted EPS excludes the impact of potential common shares related to our stock options in periods in which 
the option exercise price is greater than the average market price of our Class A common stock and our Class A Special common stock 
during the period. Diluted EPS excludes the impact of potential common shares related to our Class A Special common stock held 
in treasury because it is our intent to settle the related Comcast exchangeable notes using cash (see Note 8). 

Diluted EPS for 2004 excludes approximately 103 million potential common shares related to our stock compensation plans because 
the option exercise price was greater than the average market price of our Class A common stock and our Class A Special common 
stock for the period. 
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Diluted EPS for 2003 and 2002 excludes approximately 146 million and 91 million potential common shares, respectively, primarily 
related to our stock compensation plans because the assumed issuance of such potential common shares is antidilutive in periods in 
which there is a loss from continuing operations. 

The following table reconciles the numerator and denominator of the computations of Diluted EPS for common stockholden from 
continuing operations for the years presented: 

5. A C Q U I S I T I O N S  A N D  O T H E R  S I G N I F I C A N T  E V E N T S  

Acquisition of Broadband 
On November 18,2002, we completed the acquisition of Broadband. The results of the Broadband operations have been included in 
our consolidated financial statements since that date. The acquisition created the largest cable operator in the United States by 
combining Broadband's and our cable networks. 

2003 ZOO2 

P a  P a  
Sham Sham 

Loss Shares Amount Lorr Sham Amount 

S(218) 2,256 s(O.10) S(469) 1.1 10 S(0.42) 

- - - - - - 
$(218) 2,256 S(0.10) S(469) 1.110 $042) 

fDollan in millions, exwpt per sham data) 
Year Ended December 31, 

Basic EPS for common stockholders 
Effect of Dilutive Securities 

Assumed exercise or issuance of shares 
relating to stock compensation plans 

Diluted EPS 

The consideration to complete the acquisition of Broadband was $50.660 billion, consisting of $25.495 billion of our common stock 
and options, $24.740 billion of assumed debt, and $425 million of transaction costs directly related to the acquisition. We issued approxi- 
mately 1.348 billion shares of our common stock (excluding shares of Class A common stock issued and classified as treasury stock) 
consisting of 1.233 billion shares of our Class A common stock issued to Broadband shareholders in exchange for all of AT&T's interests 
in Broadband and approximately 100.6 million shares and 14.4 million shares of our Class A and Class A Special common stock, 
respectively, issued to Miuosoft in exchange for Broadband shares that Microsoft received immediately prior to the completion of the 
Broadband acquisition for settlement of its $5 billion aggregate principal amount in quarterly income preferred securities. We also 
issued 61.1 million options in exchange far outstanding Broadband options. The shares issued for Broadband w m  valued based on a 
price per share of $1 8.80 that reflects the weighted average market price of Comcast Holdings common stock during the period 
beginning two days before and ending two days after August 12, 2002. The acquisition was structured as a tax-free transaction to 
us, to Corncast Holdings and to AT&T, The identification of Comcast Holdings as the acquiring entity was made after careful consideration 
of all facts and cirrumstances, including those outlined in SFAS No. 141 related to voting rights, the existence of a large minority voting 
interest, governance arrangements and composition of senior management. 

,- 
2004 

P u  
Sham 

Income Sh.m Amount 

$970 2.240 50.43 

- 10 - 
$970 2,250 50.43 

Purchase Price Allocation. The application of purchase accounting under SFAS No. 141 requires that the total purchase price of an 
acquisition be allocated to the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values at the acquisition date. 
During 2003, we finalized the Broadband purchase price allocation except for litigation contingencies relating to our share of AT&T's 
potential liability associated with the At Home Corporation litigation (see Note 13). We have arranged with AT&T to obtain additional 
information to assist with the evaluation of this potential liability and continue to expect to receive such information. However, we have 
concluded that continued delays in obtaining such information indicate it cannot be used in allocating the Broadband purchase price. 
Accordingly, the allocation period is complete and any adjustment recorded in the future associated with these litigation contingencies 
will be included in our results of operations in the period in which a liability, if any, is deemed probable and reasonably estimable. Such 
adjustment is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, but it could possibly be material to our 
results of operations in the period in which it is determined. 

As of the acquisition date, we initiated integration activities based on a preliminary plan to terminate employees and exit specific 
contractual obligations. Under the guidance in ElTF 95-3, "Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase Business Combina- 
tion," the plan must be finalized within one year of the acquisition date and must identify all significant actions to be taken to complete 
the plan. Therefore, costs related to terminating employees and exiting contractual obligations of the acquired entrty are included in the 
purchase price allocation. Changes to these estimated termination or exit costs are reflected as adjustments to the purchase price 
allocation to the extent they occur within one year of the acquisition date or if there are reductions in the amount of estimated 
termination or exit costs accrued. Otherwise, changes will affect results of operations. 
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The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the related deferred income taxes as of 
the acquisition date and reflects adjustments to the purchase price allocation through the end of the allocation period. Adjustments 
have been made to Broadband's goodwill in 2004 related to tax contingencies and exit accruals that are not reflected below (dollan in 
millions): 

Current assets 
Investments 
Property, plant and equipment 
Amortizable intangible assets: 

Franchise related customer relationships 
Other 

Cable franchise rights 
Goodwill 
Other noncurrent assets 300 

Total assets 77.516 

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities 
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt 
Long-term debt 
Deferred income taxes 
Other nonturrent liabilities 

Total liabilities (52.7221 

Comcast shares held by Broadband, classified as treasury stock 1.126 

Net assets acquired S 25,920 

In the aggregate, the intangible assets that are subject to amortization have a weighted average useful life of 4 yean. Franchise related 
customer relationships have a weighted average useful life of 4 years. The $9.178 billion of goodwill, none of which was deductible for 
income tax purposes, was assigned to our cable segment. 

Liabilities associated with exit activities originally recorded in the purchase price allocation consisted of $602 million associated with 
accrued employee termination and related costs and $929 million associated with either the cost of terminating contracts or the present 
value of remaining amounts payable under non cancelable contracts. Amounts paid, adjustments made against these accruals and 
interest accretion during 2003 and 2004 were as follows (dollars in millions): 

E ~ P ~ Y -  
Tarmi~tion and ~ontna 

Rabted Costa Exit Cost8 

Balance, December 31,2002 S 492 S 913 
Payments 
Adjustments 
Interest accretion - 8 

Balance, December 31,2003 S 135 S 461 
Payments 
Adjustments 
Interest accretion 
Balance, December 31,2004 S 23 S 52 

The adjustments in the preceding table reflect reductions in the estimated payments related to employee termination and contract exit 
costs. 
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The following unaudited pro forrna information has been presented as if the Broadband acquisition occuned on January 1,2002. This 
information is based on historical results of operations, adjusted for acquisition costs, and, in the opinion of management, is not 
necessarily indicative of what the results would have been had we operated the entities acquired since such dates. 

(Dollm in millions, except per s h m  deu) 
Y w  Endd Dec*mbr 31, 2002 

Revenues 116,754 
Loss before cumulative effect of accounting change (1 5,071) 
Net loss (15,071) 
Diluted EPS (6.55) 

The unaudited pro forma information for the year ended December 31,2002 includes $1 1.781 billion, net of tax, of goodwill and 
franchise impairment charges, and $56 million of asset impairment, restructuring and other charges recorded by Broadband prior to the 
closing of the Broadband acquisition. 

Pro forrna information reflecting our 2004 and 2003 transactions is not presented due to immateriality. 

2004 Activity 
Gemstar 
On March 31,2004, we entered into a long-term, non-exclusive patent license and distribution agreement with Gemstar-TV Guide 
lnternational in exchange for a one-time payment of $250 million to Gemstar. This agreement allows us to utilize Gemstafs intellectual 
property and technology and the TV Guide brand and content on our interactive program guides. We have allocated the $250 million 
amount paid based on the fair value of the components of the contract to various intangible and other assets, which are being 
amortized over a period of 3 to 12 years. In addition, we and Gemstar formed an entity to develop and enhance interactive 
programming guides. 

TochTV 
On May 10,2004, we completed the acquisition of TechTV Inc. by acquiring all outstanding common and preferred stock of TechTV from 
Vulcan Programming Inc. for approximately $300 million in cash. Substantially all of the purchase price has been recorded to intangible 
assets based on a preliminary allocation of value and is being amortized over a period of 2 to 12 years. On May 28,2004, G4 and TechTV 
began operating as one network that is available to approximately 47 million cable and satellite homes nationwide as of December 31, 
2004. We have classified G4 as part of our content business segment (see Note 14). The effects of our acquisition of TechTV have been 
reflected in our consolidated statement of operations from the date of the transaction. 

Liberty Exchango Agroomont 
On July 28,2004, we exchanged approximately 120 million shares of Liberty Media Corporation Series A common stock that we held 
(see Note 6), valued at approximately $1.022 billion based upon the price of Liberty common stock on the closing date of the 
transaction, with Liberty for 100% of the stock of liberty's subsidiary, Encore ICCP, Inc. Encore's assets consisted of cash of approximately 
$547 million, a 10.4% interest in E! and 100% of lnternational Channel Networks. We also received all of Liberty's rights, benefits and 
obligations under the TCI Music contribution agreement, which resulted in the resolution of all pending litigation between Liberty and 
us regarding the contribution agreement (see Note 13). The Liberty exchange increased our portfolio of programming investments 
because we now own 60.5% of E! and 100% of International Channel Networks. The exchange was strustwed as a tax free transaction. 
We allocated the value of the shares exchanged in the transaction among cash, our additional investment in E!, lnternational Channel 
Networks and the resolutbn of the litigation related to the contribution agreement. The values of certain of these assets and liabilities 
are based on pmlimina~y valuations and are subject to adjustment as the valuation reports are obtained. The effects of our acquisition of 
the additional interest in E! and our acquisition of International Channel Networks have been reflected in our consolidated statement of 
operations from the date of the transaction. 

2003 Advity 
Comcmt SportrNet Chicago 
In December 2003, we, in conjunction with affiliates of the Chicago Blackhawks, Bulls. Cubs and White Sox professional sports teams, 
formed CSN Chicago. This 24-hour regional sports network is available to approximately 2.8 million Chicago-ama cable and satellite 
subscribers as of December 31,2004. We acquired our controlling interest in this network for approximately $87 million in cash, which 
was allocated to contract-related intangibles and is being amortized over a period of 15 years. The results of CSN Chicago have been 
included in our consolidated financial statements since the date of formation. 
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Tho Golf Channel 
In December 2003, we acquired the approximate 8.6% interest in TGC previously held by the Tribune Company for $100 million in cash. 
This amount has been allocated to cable and satellite television distribution rights, which is being amortized over a period of 
approximately eight years, and to goodwill. As a result, we now own 99.9% of TGC. 

Bnsnan Transaction 
On March 20, 2003, we completed the transaction with Bresnan Broadband Holdings, LLC and Bresnan Communications, LLC 
(together, "Bresnan") pursuant to which we transfen-ed cable systems serving approximately 31 4,000 subxriben in Montana, Wyoming, 
Colorado and Utah to Bresnan that we had acquired in connection with the Broadband acquisition. We received $525 million in cash, 
plus preferred and common equity interests in Bresnan, in exchange for these cable systems. The transfer of these cable systems was 
accounted for at fair value with no gain or loss recognized. The results of operations for these cable systems for the first quarter of 2003 
were not significant and were included in equity in net losses of affiliates in our consolidated statement of operations. 

TWE Rortructuring 
On March 31,2003, we completed the restructuring of our investment in Time Warner Entertainment Company LR ("WE"). As a result 
of the restructuring, Time Wamer Inc. assumed complete control over TWE's content assets, including Home Box Office, Warner Bros., 
and stakes in The WB Network, Comedy Central and Court TV. All of Time Warner's interests in cable, including those held through 
TWE, are now held through or for the benefit of a new subsidiary of Time Wamer called Time Wamer Cable Inc. ("TWC"). In exchange 
for our 27.6% interest in W E ,  we received common-equivalent preferred stock of Time Warner, which will be converted into $1.5 billion 
of Time Wamer common stock valued upon completion of an effective registration statement filing with the SEC, and we received a 
21% economic stake in the business of TWC. In addition, we received $2.1 billion in cash that was used immediately to repay amounts 
outstanding under our credit facilities (see Notes 6 and 8). The W E  restructuring was accounted for as a fair value exchange with no 
gain or loss recognized. Under the restructuring agreement, we have registration rights that should facilitate the disposal or monetiza- 
tion of our shams in TWC and in Time Warner. On December 29, 2003, demand registration rights were exercised to start the 
registration process for the sale of  up to 17.9% of TWC. 

As part of the process of obtaining approval of the Broadband acquisition from the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC"), at 
the closing of the Broadband acquisition, we placed our entire interest in TWE in trust for orderly disposition. Any non-cash 
consideration received in respect of  such interest as a result of the W E  restructuring, including the Time Wamer and TWC stock, will 
remain in trust until disposed of or FCC approval is obtained to remove such interests from the trust. 

Under the trust, the trustee has exclusive authority to exarcise any management or governance rights associated with the securities in 
trust. The trustee also has the obligation, subject to our rights as described in the last sentence of this paragraph, to exercise available 
registration rights to effect the sale of such interests in a manner intended to maximize the value received consistent with the goal of  
disposing such securities in their entirety by November 2007. Following this time, if any securities remain in trust, the trustee will be 
obligated to dispose of  the remaining interests as quickly as possible, and in any event by May 2008. The trustee is also obligated, 
through November 2007, to effect various specified types of sale or monetization transactions with respect to the securities as may be 
proposed by us from time to time. 

On September 27,20W, we and Time Wamer announced an agreement that provides us with an option to reduce our effective overall 
interest in TWC from approximately 21% to 17% in exchange for stock of a subsidiary that will hold cable systems which will serve 
approximately 90.000 basic subxriben and own approximately $750 million in cash. The agreement grants us the option to require 
TWC to redeem a portion of the TWC common stock held in trust in exchange for 100% of the common stock o f  the TWC subsidiary. 
The option may be exercised at any time prior to the 60th day (the "Termination Date") following a notice that may be given at any time 
by either party of termination of the option period. In addition, the trust that holds the TWC shares agreed not to request that TWC 
register the trust's shares in TWC for sale in a public offering prior to the Termination Date. In the absence of  an effective registration 
statement, the common-equivalent preferred stockof Time Warner will automatically convert into $1.5 billion of Time Warner common 
stock on March 31,2005. These shares of  common stock will then be freely saleable without registration under the Securities Act. 

Sale o f  QVC 
On September 17,2003, we completed the sale to Liberty Media Corporation of all shares of QVC common stock held by a number of 
our direct wholly-owned subsidiaries for an aggregate value of approximately $7.7 billion, consisting of $4 billion principal amount of 
Liberty's Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2006 (the "Liberty Notes"), $1.35 billion in cash and approximately 21 8 million shares of Liberty 
Series A common stock. The shares had a fair value on the closing date of $10.73 per share. As a condition of closing, some equity 
awards were required to be settled. The cost of settling the awards was included in the costs of the transaction. The consideration 
received, net of transaction costs, over our canying value of the net assets of QVC resuhed in a gain of approximately $3.290 billion, net 
of  approximately $2.865 billion of related income taxes. 
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The results of operations of QVC prior to its disposition are included within income from discontinued operations, net of tax as follows 
(dollan in millions): 

Year Endd  D.c*mkr 31, 2003 2002 

Revenues 52,915 54,381 
Income before income taxes and minority interest 496 624 
Income tax expense 1 84 263 

For financial reporting purposes, the QVC transaction is presented as having occumd on September 1,2003. As such, the 2003 period 
includes QVC operations through August 31,2003, as reported to us by QVC. 

(Doffan in million J 
0.umb.r 31. 

Fair value method 
Cablevision 
Liberty Media Corporation 
Liberty Media lnternational 
Microsoft 
Sprint 
Vodafone 
Other 

Nonsurrent investments ( 512.812 ( 514,818 

Equity method, principally cable-related 
Cost method, principally TWC and Time Warner 

Total investments 
Less: current investments 

Fair Value Method 
We hold unrestricted equity investments, which we account for as available for sale or trading securities, in publicly traded companies. 
Our investments in Liberty, Liberty Media International, Inc. ("Liberty International"), Microsoft, Sprint and Vodafone, and appl~ximately 
80% of our investment in Cablevision, are accounted for as trading securities. The net unrealized pre-tax gains on investments 
accounted for as available for sale securities as of December 31,2004 and 2003, of $26 million and $65 million, respectively, have been 
reported in our consolidated balance sheet principally as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of related 
deferred income taxes of $9 million and $23 million, respectively. 

On June 7,2004, we received approximately 11 million shares of Liberty Media International, Inc. ("Liberty International") Series A 
common stock in connection with the spin-off by Liberty of Liberty International. In the spin-off, each share of Liberty Series A and 
Series B common stock received 0.05 shares of the new Liberty International Series A common stock. Approximately 5 million of these 
shares collateralize a portion of the 10 year prepaid fornard sale of Liberty common stock that we entered into in Decembar 2003 (see 
below). On December 2,2004, we sold 3 million shares of Liberty lnternational Series A common stock to Liberty in a private transaction 
for proceeds of $128 million. 

3,717 

2.460 
8,190 

14,367 
1.555 
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The cost, fair value and unrealized gains and losses related to our available for sale securities are as follows (dollars in millions): 

Proceeds from the sales of available for sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $67 million, 
$1.222 billion and $874 million, respectively. Gross realhed gains and losses on these sales for the years ended December 31,2004,2003 
and 2002 were $10 million, $27 million and ($48) million, respectively. 

We also hold a series of option agreements (the "Microsoh Collars" and "Vodafone Collars") with a single bank counterparty that limits 
our exposure to and benefits from price fluctuations in the Microsoft common stock and Vodafone ADRs. Certain Microsoh Collars and 
Vodafone Collars are recorded in investments at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses being recorded to investment income (loss), 
net. These unrealized gains or losses are substantially offset by the changes in the fair value of shares of Microsoft common stock and 
Vodafone ADRs. 

2003 

S 92 
66 

(1) 

$157 

Dmmbmr H, 

Cost 
Unrealized gains 
Unrealized losses 

Fair value 

During 2004, we settled some of our obligations relating to our Cablevision, Microsoh and Vodafone exchangeable notes (see Note 8) 
by delivering approximately 26.9 million Cablevision shares, 21.4 million Microsoft shares and 19.5 million Vodafone ADRs to the 
counterpa* upon maturity of the instruments. 

, 
2004 

$65 
26 - 

$9 1 

During 2003, we sold all $4.0 billion principal amount of the Liberty Notes that we received in the sale of QVC for net proceeds of 
approximately $4.0 billion. In December 2003, we entered into a 10 year prepaid forward sale of 100 million shares of Liberty common 
stock and received $894 million in cash. At maturity, the counterparty is entitled to receive Liberty and Liberty International common 
stock, or an equivalent amount of cash at our option, based upon the market value of Liberty common stock at the time. 

As of December 31, 2004, approximately $2.681 billion of our fair value method securities support our obligations under our 
exchangeable notes or prepaid forward contracts. 

Equity Method 
Our recorded investments exceed our proportionate interests in the book value of the investees' net assets by $1.469 billion and 
$1.696 billion as of December 31,2004 and 2003, respectively (principally related to our 50% owned investments in Taxas and Kansas 
City Cable Partners, LP. and Insight Midwest). A portion of this basis difference has been attributed to franchise related customer 
relationships of the investees. This difference is amortized to equity in net income or loss of affiliates over a period of four years. As a 
result of the adoption of SFAS No. 142, we do not amortize the portion of the basis difference attributable to goodwill but will continue 
to test such excess for impairment in accordance with APE Opinion 18, "The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common 
Stock." 

Equity in net losses of affiliates for the years ended December 31,2004 and 2002 includes impairment charges of $3 million and 
$31 million, respectively, related principally to other than temporaly declines in our investments in and advances to certain of our equity 
method investees. 

Summarized financial information for investments deemed significant and accounted for under the equity method was as follows 
(dollars in millions): 

Loss fmm continuing operations before extraordinary items and 
cumulative effect of accounting change 

Net loss 

GSI Bmadnet 
Commerce, 1nc.w Conmrcio. SA. 

lAJ GSl Commerce, Inc. was an equity method imrestment of QVC, and such arnouno are included within discontinued operations for all periods rhmugh OVCk sale date 
(see Note 51. 
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On September 30,2004, we sold our 20% interest in DHC Ventures, LLC (Discovery Health Channel) to Discovery Communications, Inc. 
for approximately 5149 million in cash and recognized a gain on the sale of approximately $94 million to  other income. 

Cost Method 
In connection with the W E  restructuring, we received a 21% economic stake in the business of TWC. This investment is accounted for 
under the cost method because we do not have the ability to exercise significant influence over the operating and financial policies of 
TWC bee Note 5). 

We hold two series of preferred stock of AirTouch Communications, Inc., a subsidiary of Vodafone, that are recorded at $1.423 billion 
and $1.409 billion as of December 31,2004 and 2003, respectively. The dividend and redemption activrty of the AirTouch p r e f e d  stock 
is tied to the dividend and redemption payments associated with substantially all of the preferred shares issued by one of our 
consolidated subsidiaries, which is a VIE. The subsidiary has three series of preferred stock outstanding with an aggregate redemption 
value of $1.750 billion. Substantially all of the preferred shares are redeemable in April 2020 at a redemption value of $1.650 billion, with 
one of the series bearing a 9.08% dividend rate. The two redeemable series of subsidiary preferred shares are recorded at $1.428 billion 
and $1.420 billion, and such amounts are included in other noncurrent liabilities as of December 31,2004 and 2003, respectively. The 
non-redeemable series of subsidiary preferred shares is recorded at $100 million as of both December 31,2004 and 2003, and such 
amounts are included in minority interest. 

In connection with the Broadband acquisition, we acquired an indirect interest in CC M11, LLC, a cable joint venture with Charter 
Communications, Inc. In April 2002, AT&T exercised its rights to  cause Paul G. Allen, Chartefs Chairman, or his designee to purchase 
this indirect interest In June 2003, Paul Allen purchased our interest in CC Vlll for $728 million in cash. We accounted for the sale of our 
interest in CC Vlll at fair value with no gain or loss recognized. 

Invortment Income (Loss), Net 
Investment income (loss), net includes the following (dollars in millions): 

Interest and dividend income 
Gains (losses) on sales and exchanges of investments, net 
Investment impairment charges 
Unrealized gains (losses) on trading securities 
Mark to market adjustments on derivatives related to  trading securities 
Mark to market adjustments on derivatives and hedged items 

Investment income (loss), net 

The investment impairment charges for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 relate principally to other than temporary 
declines in our investment in AT&T. 
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